






To Our Stockholders, Customers and Employees:

2005 proved to be a very challenging year for Wright Medical Group, 

Inc., resulting in overall financial performance that fell short of both our 

expectations and those of our investors.  For the first time since becom-

ing a public company in 2001, Wright experienced a decrease in sales 

momentum gains from previous years, as well as a decline in earnings 

per share.  While these overall results are very disappointing, there is most 

certainly cause for optimism about the future due to our expectations 

for the innovative orthopaedic products residing within each of our four 

major product lines.  Wright’s global product portfolio is broad and well-

	 balanced, consisting of differentiated 

	 reconstructive total joint hip  and	

	 knee implants, technologically ad- 	

	 vanced upper and lower extremity 	

	 products and a full complement 	

	 of bone repair and soft tissue 	

	 products within our biologics 	

	 business.  Throughout the year, 	

	 new product innovations within 	

	 each of these business segments 	

	 were launched in our various global 	

	 markets.  These new product 	

	 introductions took place in a 	

	 favorable worldwide orthopaedic 	

	 market that is estimated to reach 	

	 approximately $23 billion dollars 

	 by the end of 2006.  Encouraged 	

	 by such positive market conditions, 	

	 we will continue to make the 	

	 necessary management and 	

	 financial investments to not only 	

	 return Wright to higher levels 	

	 of profitability as demonstrated in 

	 the past, but also implement 	

targeted business strategies for sustained future growth, performance 

and success.

On March 22, 2006, Wright’s board of directors announced the appoint-

ment of Gary D. Henley as the new President and Chief Executive Officer 

and Director, effective April 4, 2006.   Mr. Henley has a distinguished 

record of accomplishments during his 24 years in the medical device 

industry, which include senior management positions with 

Smith + Nephew and most recently with Orthofix International 

NV, where he was President of the Americas Division, a publicly 

traded company.  Mr. Henley will bring to Wright a strong track 

record of building shareholder value and experience in all facets 

of managing and strategically growing a global orthopedic 

medical company.  With this appointment, I relinquished my 

position as Interim President and CEO and re-assumed the role 

of Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors.  James T. Treace 

also relinquished his current position as Chairman and remains a 

director of the company.   

Beginning our review of 2005, Wright’s overall 7% global growth 

rate in 2005 was primarily driven by strong domestic performance 

of our hip and knee reconstructive joints, complemented by sales 

growth within our upper and lower extremity products offering.  

Our domestic reconstructive hip joint implants continued to see 

steady growth, reaching an annual growth rate of 18%.  Key to this 

result was our continued market penetration with the PROFEMUR® 

modular neck implant system.  This innovative product allows the 

surgeon to more precisely position the implant’s femoral head in 

relation to the hip socket component, providing a greater range 

of motion for the patient.  Additionally, several new femoral 

stem configurations incorporating the modular neck concept 

were introduced over the course of 2005 to broaden surgeon 

acceptance of the design.  These new stem configurations allow 

the surgeon to choose a preferred stem style to specifically address 

the clinical needs of each patient.  

In addition to modular necks, our high performance bearings 

significantly contributed to the sales growth in our hip products in 

2005.  Comprised of ceramic-on-ceramic, Big Femoral Head (BFH®) 

metal-on-metal bearings and the recently introduced cross-linked 

polyethylene option, our advanced bearing technology was a key 

driver within the hip product category.

Wright’s 2005 domestic reconstructive knee product line achieved 

an annual sales growth rate of 11%.  We experienced greater 
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“For 2006, we have 
focused our business 

strategies and resources 
into new products 

and expanded sales 
distribution that will 

enable Wright to  
return to its

 stated longer-
term financial 
objectives of
 low to mid-

teens top
 line growth

 and
 expanding
 operating

 margins as we
 exit the year.

F. Barry Bays,
Executive Chairman 

of The Board
of Directors

“



market penetration with our ADVANCE® Medial-Pivot knee system 

due to enhanced minimally invasive surgery (MIS) instrumentation.  

This growth was complemented by the broader acceptance of our 

ADVANCE® Double-High tibial insert, which offers an improved range 

of motion and is suitable for the cruciate retaining segment of the 

total knee market.  

Our domestic upper and lower extremity products provided a sales 

growth rate of 12% over 2004, primarily due to the introduction 

of our CHARLOTTE™ advanced foot and ankle system, along with 

continued surgeon awareness and acceptance of Wright’s distal 

radius and elbow products.  These products offer a strong platform 

for Wright to expand our distribution and market penetration within 

these respective customer segments.  We believe that by providing 

innovative small joint products within the upper and lower extremity 

markets, complement-ed by our broad biologics solutions, we can 

continue to see low to mid-teen annual sales growth over the next 

several years.   

In the biologics area, beginning in the latter half of 2004 and continu-

ing throughout 2005 , sales were quite disappointing, demonstrating 

flat year over year growth.  While this product segment has been a 

strong contributor to overall Company growth in past periods, 2005 

saw significant changes in market dynamics in the bone graft substi-

tute arena, resulting in negative sales growth.  However, dramatic 

year over year growth was seen in the soft tissue segment, led by our 

GRAFTJACKET® family of products.  Furthermore, Wright’s biologics 

offering strongly complements our products within the upper and 

lower extremity and reconstructive joint markets.  Returning this 

product segment to high single digit to low teen’s sales growth over 

time, however, will require investments in additional field specialists 

and expansion within our distribution system.

Overall corporate performance during 2005 led to below-expectation 

financial results within the first three calendar quarters.  In early 

October 2005, Wright pre-released our anticipated third quarter 

results and downwardly-revised its financial outlook for the re-

mainder of the year.  Shortly after that announcement, the Company 

accepted the resignation of Laurence Y. Fairey, then President and 

CEO, and simultaneously announced my interim appointment to the 

position.  Then serving as the Executive Chairman of the Board, I had 

previously served as Wright’s President and CEO from January 2000 

through July 2004.  At that same time, James T. Treace was appointed 

as Chairman of the Board, a position he had previously held from 

December 1999 to July 2004.  Following these changes and over the 

balance of 2005, I have reorganized the senior management staff to 

provide a management structure capable of executing our targeted 

strategies for 2006.  Under the new leadership of Gary D. Henley, our 

senior management will remain focused on the objective of returning 

the business to more predictable future growth, performance and 

success.   

Focusing On Financial Achievement 

Wright achieved another year of overall net sales growth, but had a 

disappointing net income performance, resulting in negative year-

over-year earnings results.  Lower-than-anticipated sales revenues 

within certain product segments, along with weaker European sales 

and an expense structure created for higher rates of sales, resulted 

in the company falling short of its original 2005 earnings 

expectations.   However, since early in the fourth quarter of 2005, 

current management has undertaken initiatives to rationalize 

operating expenses and establish an appropriately-sized cost 

infrastructure that will support the our growth objectives.  These 

steps are designed to return Wright to its corporate objective of 

creating bottom-line leverage and generate low to mid-teens sales 

growth by the end of 2006.

Net sales for 2005 increased 7% to $319.1 million from $297.5 million 

in 2004.  The company’s net income, as adjusted, for 2005 declined to 



corporate growth and leverage objectives, it is our aim to return 

the company to such levels of performance as we exit 2006 and to 

sustain such performance during 2007 and beyond.

Corporate governance continues to be an area of importance and 

emphasis for us.  We entered 2005 fully compliant with the new 

internal control systems requirements set forth by Rule 404 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and continued to improve the overall 

efficiency of this system as we moved through the year.

In other operations matters, the global implementation of our 

business software continued in 2005 with most of Europe now con-

verted to the J.D. Edwards system.  We also expect to fully implement 

our Japanese operations to the same business system software 

in early 2007, which will result in complete integration of our 

international operations.

Our manufacturing operations did not change in any significant way 

over the course of 2005. However, implementation of additional 

cellular, or “lean”, manufacturing techniques, coupled with our Six 

Sigma Quality program, allowed us to maintain a healthy gross 

margin, as adjusted, of 71.7%. We believe with anticipated product 

mix and steady efficiency increases each year, we should be able to 

maintain our gross margins at or near parity with our much larger 

competitors.  

Regulatory activities associated with global product approvals were 

a very significant part of our business in 2005.  We are required to 

seek and receive regulatory clearance for all new or significantly 

modified products prior to commercial distribution.  In the first half 

of 2005, Wright received clearance from the United States  Food 

and Drug Administration (FDA) for all of our tissue-containing 

ALLOMATRIX® bone graft materials. Globally, we are now filing 

regulatory approval applications at an average rate of 11 per month.  

This is a significant increase over 2004, due to additional regulatory 

requirements from agencies around the world.  Looking to the 

future, we anticipate the FDA and many international regulatory 

agencies to continue to elevate their requirements for new product 

submissions, thus creating additional costs prior to any new product 

launches.  However, through key investments made in 2005 related 

to additional personnel and new system 
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$24.9 million, or $0.71 per diluted share, compared with 2004 net income, 

as adjusted, of $26.5 million, or $0.75 per diluted share.  Our key operating 

ratios significantly declined during 2005, with operating income, as 

adjusted, as a percentage of sales decreasing to 12.2% from 14.1% in 2004. 

Wright’s overall earnings performance was significantly influenced by 

the negative year-over-year sales performance of our U.S. biologics line 

and, internationally, by our European sales performance which was

hampered by the transition of certain sales management and distribution	

personnel in southern Europe throughout the year.  Our overall 		

domestic sales revenues increased at a 10% rate, while overall inter-

	 national sales growth totaled 4%,	

	 yielding a combined global sales

	 growth rate of 7% for 2005.

	 Our balance sheet remained very 

	 strong at the end of 2005, with the

	 total stockholder’s equity increasing

	 by $16 million to $292 million at

	 year end.  We ended the year with

	 cash and marketable securities

	 totaling $76.3 million and net

	 working capital of $196.1 million,

	 while we continue to maintain an

	 additional $60 million line of credit.  

	 Operating Results

	 While we continued to make

	 investments into various programs 	

	 and infrastructure during  2005, 	

	 those additional investments were 	

	 not accompanied by accelerating 	

	 sales growth, as anticipated.  	

	 Therefore we did not meet our 	

	 longer-term financial objective of 

	 maintaining low to mid-teens

revenue growth while providing operating income results that exceed 

the revenue growth target.  Nor did our SG&A see the typical leverage 

as seen in prior year-over-year comparisons, with SG&A, as adjusted, as a 

percentage of sales increasing by 0.7% to 51.1% versus 50.4% in 2004.  

Wright’s long-term objective is to reduce the overall SG&A percentage 

by one to one-and-a-half percentage points each calendar year.  

Although we do not expect our full-year 2006 results to meet our 

“Ours is a performance-
driven culture at Wright.  
We work hard to ensure 

resources get focused on 
what matters and that

 the initiatives we
 pursue will drive 

attractive
 financial

 returns.  Our 
organizational 
philosophies,

 processes
 and reward 

systems
 reflect that

 we work for 
stockholders.

John K. Bakewell,
EVP and 

Chief Financial 
Officer

“



controls, we believe Wright is well positioned to meet this demand as it increases over 

time.   

In 2005, our domestic reconstructive hip, knee and extremity businesses achieved 

several positive outcomes, due to the strength of the respective products within 

each segment.  Our domestic hip sales reached a growth rate of 18%.  This outcome 

resulted from combining our modular PROFEMUR® stem and neck implants with 

our very comprehensive high performance bearings, including our ceramic-on-

ceramic and larger diameter metal-on-metal Big Femoral Head (BFH®) technology.  

This product offering fits extremely well with the trend toward smaller incision sizes 

associated with most total hip procedures today.  Additionally, the combination of 

the modular necks and larger femoral heads dramatically reduces the chance for the 

most common and dreaded post-operative complication — dislocation.  The larger 

head and modular neck combination is actually providing some surgeons with the 

confidence to modify their patients’ post-operative protocols without concerns over 

dislocation.  Under these surgeon-initiated protocols, patients are free to return 

to normal activities with little or no post-surgical restrictions.  Additionally, we are 

aggressively developing alternative surgical approaches to help reduce patients’ 

hospital stays and decrease the level of both pain medications and therapy required 

following hip procedures.  

Our 2005 domestic knee performance improved over 2004 by 11%, largely due to our 

development of improved instrumentation for standard and MIS surgical approaches.  

Additionally, we have seen continued market acceptance of the new ADVANCE® 

Double-High tibial insert, which offers a higher degree of flexion and stability, 

allowing surgeons to use our ADVANCE® Medial-Pivot femoral component within 

the cruciate-retaining segment of the total knee market. Together, our improved 

instrumentation and new tibial inserts were the primary contributor to this year’s 

increased domestic performance in knees.

Domestic extremity performance maintained strong momentum throughout 2005, 

reaching 12% year-over-year sales growth, driven largely by additional interest in and 

conversion to our new CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle products.  To promote further 

growth in extremities, we are targeting the distal radius surgery segment through 

both existing and new products.  We believe we have made good progress 

in penetration of this market with fracture fixation implants like our LOCON® VLS 

plating system and innovative MICRONAIL™ internal fixation device.  Various 

surgical meetings and medical 
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journals are beginning to highlight clinical results which confirm that the MICRONAIL™  

system yields an earlier return to normal wrist motion, with less swelling and subsidence 

of bony fragments during the healing process.  We believe this internal fixation 

technology, which is patented and controlled by Wright, may position us to become the 

dominant provider of fracture fixation devices within the distal radius repair market. It is 

also important to note that our products for the distal radius, foot and ankle, elbow and 

shoulder have been greatly enhanced by the incorporation of our bone graft injectable 

putties, as well as our exclusive GRAFTJACKET ® soft tissue material.  Offering such 

complementary product combinations allows surgeons the convenience of dealing with 

one supplier for a wide array of clinical needs.

New Products and Market Dynamics

Wright continues to make significant global investments within the R&D area, which 

also includes regulatory compliance and clinical affairs.  Investments in these areas 

increased in 2005 by 21% over 2004 levels.   In 2005, a total of $22.3 million was invested 

in R&D, representing a $3.9 million increase over 2004 levels, resulting in R&D expense 

totaling 7% of sales in 2005.  Higher expenses in this area were due to a global increase 

in fees for regulatory submissions, as well as requirements for additional and more 

comprehensive preclinical testing to support submissions.  Clinical monitoring will 

continue to be a large contributor to the annual increase in expenses associated with 

the development of new products that are subject to Investigational Device Exemption 

(IDE) studies and Pre-Market Approval (PMA) clearances.  

Capitalizing on our innovative new products requires global sales force expansion 

and development. We have a history of introducing three to four significant new 

products within each calendar quarter.  To support this level of new product launches, 

Wright increased its domestic sales force in 2005 by 1%, bringing our domestic total to 

approximately 320 exclusive distributors and salespeople.  Our international direct and 

dealer sales network increased by 24% to support sales outside the United States.  

A major new product introduction in 2005 was the launch of our advanced metal 

technology, the A-CLASS™ Series metal. This wear-reducing material 

significantly enhances our metal-on-metal total hip replacement offering, 

and has been well-received by surgeons.  We believe this technology will help 

keep us on the leading edge of the emerging “hard bearings” market.  Our 

A-CLASS™ technology significantly reduces the potential for metal wear debris 

and sets Wright apart from other competitors with metal-on-metal devices.  

We believe that, over time, this material will provide the most robust hard 

bearing surface for the majority of patients. It is also our belief that the long 

term preferred bearing option in the United States, Europe and Japan 

will be metal-on-metal 
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articulation, versus ceramic-on-ceramic or cross-linked polyethylene 

options.     

During 2005, we also completed development of several proprietary 

minimally-invasive surgical techniques and instrumentation for 

both total hip and knee procedures.  Over the next several years, we 

see these new surgical platforms as the catalyst for future growth 

within their respective markets.  Unlike more conventional surgical 

techniques, our innovative minimally invasive procedures and new 

instrumentation will help patients recover more rapidly, making it 

possible for them to begin limited movement immediately following 

surgery, without severe pain or impairment.  We anticipate that most 

patients treated with these techniques will be able to walk with little 

or no assistance within 24 hours of their procedure and be discharged 

within the second day following surgery.  We believe these innovative 

procedures, combined with our wide variety of surgical implants, 

will position us as a provider of solutions for reducing orthopaedic 

healthcare costs.

In recent years, development of bone-conserving implants and 

techniques has been a point of focus within the orthopaedic industry.  

Wright’s approach to offering a bone-sparing implant has centered 

on hip resurfacing, which allows the bony surfaces of the hip ball 

and socket to be replaced with a metal cup and spherical hollow 

ball.  In this procedure, very little bone is actually removed, whereas 

with conventional total hip surgery the bony end of the femoral ball 

is completely excised.  Our product is called the CONSERVE® Plus 

Resurfacing System.  Currently, this product is under PMA review 

by the FDA for distribution and sale within the United States.  While 

the process has taken much longer than anyone could have predicted, 

we are optimistic that the product will be cleared by the FDA.  We 

believe that this product can address not only the clinical needs of the 

typical total hip candidate, with an average age of 65 years, but also 

the younger patient population, with an average 

age of 55 years.  The primary determination  

of whether our resurfacing system is 

appropriate for a particular case is whether 
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In Focus: Hip Resurfacing Technology
For over ten years, Wright has aggressively pursued the development and 

international marketing of our CONSERVE® Plus implant.  

Now we are eager to share this total hip resurfacing option with surgeons 

in the United States.  Optimistic that regulatory clearance will be ob-

tained, Wright is ready to immediately pursue domestic sales.  “From a 

manufacturing standpoint, we’ve mobilized the appropriate tooling and 

production resources to meet the anticipated volume of a CONSERVE® Plus 

domestic launch,” stresses William J. Flannery, Vice President of Logistics 

and Materials.  

Complementing our preparation for production needs, we have developed 

thorough education programs for both our sales force and surgeons.  

According to John R. Treace, Executive Vice President of North American 

Sales , “We expect this remarkable technology to generate a great deal of 

interest among U.S. surgeons and their patients, and we are ready to meet 

the demand.  The hip industry has seen few design concepts that equal 

the innovation of resurfacing.  Wright will be privileged to offer such a 

revolutionary device to our domestic customers.”



the patient has good bone quality within the femoral ball.   We see 

the opportunity for this product easily reaching 10% of the U.S. total 

hip market, which translates into approximately a $200 million market 

segment.  Once the product is cleared by the FDA, we will immediately 

move forward with our surgeon training and educational programs in 

the United States.  

Within the biologics business, our GRAFTJACKET® Regenerative Soft 

Tissue product continued to demonstrate much greater acceptance 

within all market segments during 2005.  To augment the clinical 

successes, the Company was very active in working with the various 

federal and state agencies to assure appropriate financial reimburse-

ment for not only the material, but the surgical fees, office visits and 

associated healthcare provider fees.  The GRAFTJACKET® product 

and the clinical uses for most indications are now covered by 

reimbursement codes from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 

Services (CMS).  These reimbursement codes allow our sales and 

distribution network to aggressively pursue use of the product within 

all areas of orthopaedics and the diabetic foot ulcer market.  While 

there have been competitive pressures within this product area, the 

unique properties of revascularization, strength, ease of use and clinical 

performance have proven to be the determining factors by which 

many surgeons have chosen our GRAFTJACKET® material over 

other competitive products.   Looking to the future, Wright will 

continue to invest in new product development globally at an 

annual rate of 6% to 7% of sales.     

International Activity

International revenues accounted for 38% of our total 

revenues in 2005, with a year-over-year growth of 4%.  The year was 

challenging, due to continued rebuilding within our European organ-

ization, particularly in northern Italy and southern France.  We believe 

that with the May 2005 appointment of a new European President, 

Mr. Paul R. Kosters, and his proven track record of leadership, we will 

continue to make great strides in Europe for improved results in the 

future.  Working toward those improved results, Mr. Kosters has 

reorganized the sales and distribution organization to allow for 

expanded market penetration in regions not pursued previously, such 

as Germany, the Scandinavian 
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What could a joint resurfacing device like our CONSERVE® Plus hip 

implant mean for younger patients living with chronic, debilitating pain?  

It may serve as a significant option to total hip replacement or pain 

management therapy and the chance to return to activities they love.

Wright’s CONSERVE® Plus implant combines the benefits of metal-

on-metal articulation with a bone-conserving design.  For a younger 

patient, the metal-on-metal feature means less wear and more 

durability for an active lifestyle.  And the implant’s reduced-stem design 

means that the femoral canal is never breached, leaving far more bone 

untouched than in a total joint replacement procedure. 

In Focus: Patient Testimonial
Danny Dring is an internationally recognized, award-winning martial 

artist who has earned six gold medals and two silver medals in 

international competition. 

As a performing artist, Danny has always been acutely aware of his 

own body.  His training regimen included all the things athletes would 

normally do to keep in shape – running, lifting weights and stretching, 

in addition to his martial art training.  So, when he started experiencing 

pain in his hip, he knew immediately there was a major problem. 

In 2003, things couldn’t get any worse. It hurt for Danny to sit, lie down, 

be still and stand up.  He was teaching all over the country and after 

each seminar would lie in his hotel room in agonizing pain.

Danny researched his options, found his way to Dr. Harold Boyd in 

Salem, Oregon, and was accepted into the clinical trial for Wright’s 

CONSERVE® Plus total resurfacing arthroplasty.   He underwent the 

procedure in May of 2003, with Dr. Boyd and was walking on crutches 

and climbing up and down stairs the next day after surgery.

In mid-November, five months after surgery, he hit his Chinese splits for 

the first time in years.  According to Danny, “The non-stop throbbing in 

my hip is gone.  The 24/7 aches and pains are gone.  I am finally getting 

a full night’s sleep – no more moaning and groaning.” 

Individual patient results vary.  

— continued on page 9
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Focusing on International Growth
With 38% of the company’s total 2005 revenues derived from sales 

outside the U.S., international growth continues to be a primary point of 

focus for Wright.  Surgeons in over 60 countries look to Wright for cutting-

edge solutions to their orthopaedic challenges.  We are eager to deliver 

and extend our reach into additional international markets.

One overseas market in which we achieved marked growth in 2005 is 

Japan.  “Since establishing a direct distribution business in Japan, we’ve 

achieved greater control over the execution of key marketing strategies 

to target the unique needs of surgeons in this region,” notes Karen Harris, 

Vice President of International Sales and Distribution.  In 2005, we 

	 continued to expand our base of sales 	

	 personnel  for this subsidiary, resulting	

	 in 20% growth in sales in Japan.  Hip 		

	 offerings like the PROFEMUR® Z stem 

	 with modular neck technology and the 

	 PERFECTA® RS II stem were significant

	 contributors to this growth, with over-

	 all hip sales in Japan ending 43% above

	 the prior year’s levels.  

	 Since its establishment, Wright Medical 

	 Japan has grown to employ 59 

	 administrative personnel in five cities, 

	 as well as 29 direct sales representatives.	

	 Over the course of 2006, the subsidiary

	 will focus on further expansion of its

	 direct distribution network.

	 As we move through the year, we hope  	

	 to establish similar growth in the European 	

	 marketplace.  Following country manager 	

	 changes within our European subsidiaries 	

	 in 2004, the company faced significant

 	 distribution and sales challenges.  		

	 However, an aggressive, dedicated, new 	

management team has developed and implemented sound, targeted 

strategies to put Wright’s growth in Europe back on track.  

Central to these strategies has been the process of taking a closer look at 

the perception of Wright within the European orthopaedic community. 

“We found that while many surgeons were familiar with our core large joint 

offering, they were much less familiar with our procedure-specific products,” 

explains Michael Green, Vice President of Marketing for Europe, the Middle 

East and Africa.   “These are very unique products that show Wright is a 

technology-led company,”  Green notes.  To emphasize this strength, our 

European team developed an indication-led marketing plan.  This  marketing 

strategy is enhanced by newly 

established medical education 

programs, including Centers of  

Excellence for surgeon training.   As 

we continue to expand our reach in 

Europe, an emphasis on  innovative 

procedure-specific solutions will 

drive our pursuit of new business.  

The cultivation and preservation of 

Wright’s corporate brand is also a key 

component of our growth strategy 

for Europe.  Management has taken 

key characteristics and tightly 

wound them into the company’s 

branding strategy for the market to 

leverage Wright’s valued reputation 

as a smaller, more agile and more 

personal orthopaedic company.  

Throughout Europe in 2006, we 

will strive to invigorate growth by 

converting our undeniable passion 

for orthopaedics into sales success.  

“

“Distribution 
expansion, training 

and a constant 
building of surgeon 
relationships have 

really strengthened 
our business in 

Japan.

Karen L. Harris,
VP

International
 Sales &

 Distribution

“Again and again, 
we’ve heard surgeons 
say they like working 
with Wright because 
the company reacts 
quickly and displays 
a passion for 
orthopaedics 
that many of 
the larger 
companies 
seem to 
have lost.”

A. Michael Green,
VP of Marketing
Wright Medical 
Europe, SA



countries, Austria and Switzerland.  Furthermore, utilizing the Center 

of Excellence established at Oxford University, along with key surgeon 

training programs in Belgium, our training and educational activity for 

the European surgical community has been dramatically enhanced 

for 2006.  We expect to conduct several CONSERVE® Plus resurfacing 

training courses in Oxford and Belgium throughout the year.      

Our Japanese business saw another good year of sales growth and 

business expansion in 2005.  We continue to increase our employee 

direct distribution network within Japan to support continued 

acceptance of our hip and knee products.  By year end, our sales force 

had increased to 29 direct sales representatives. 

Product introductions within all of our international markets are 

becoming more challenging due not only to significant increases in 

regulatory submissions, but also more stringent requirements which 

are similar to those of the United States.  These additional hurdles in 

seeking and receiving product approvals have required an increase in 

our international regulatory expense and infrastructure.  The Japanese 

market is by far the most restrictive and arduous for regulatory review 

and approval.  Due to regulation changes in early 2005, approvals have 

dramatically slowed for all orthopaedic companies doing business 

within the Japanese market.   

While the overall performance of our international business was not 

what we had anticipated for 2005, we believe that the changes in our 

European management, along with the continued improvements in 

our Japanese and other distributor and export businesses, should 

position us for improved year-over-year growth in 2006. 

Targeted Strategies for the  Future      

Before looking to the future, it is important to note that the 

achievements and successes in 2005 would not have been possible 

without the tireless efforts of all our employees worldwide, along with 

the support of our Board of Directors and management team.   Our 

stockholders, customers and employees continued to support Wright, 

even with our less than anticipated financial performance, and for that 

we are very appreciative.  

As we look to 2006 and think about employing our targeted strategies 

for future sustained growth, performance and success, we also must 

refocus our attention to the fundamentals that have made this business 

successful over the years.  We believe that we have excellent products 

that can benefit a broader cross-section of orthopaedic surgeons and 

patients worldwide.  We also believe that by focusing more of 

our resources into our global distribution and 

sales force, those investments will position us for improved results 

over the course of 2006 and beyond.  While our time-line for the FDA 

approval of the CONSERVE® Plus resurfacing system has been much 

longer than anticipated, our outlook for ultimate approval remains 

bright.  Once on the market, we expect that the CONSERVE® Plus system 

will allow us to be much more assertive in attracting new potential total 

hip surgeons to this bone-conserving product concept.  Furthermore, 

linking our improved tissue preserving surgical techniques and implant 

systems for both total hip and knee procedures should generate 

more opportunity for surgeon conversions through improved patient 

outcomes.

In extremities, our expectations for increased awareness within 

the wrist and elbow segments have never been better, due to the 

clinical successes of our MICRONAIL™ internal fixation device and our 

market-leading EVOLVE® Radial Head system.  Likewise, the continued 

acceptance of both the CHARLOTTE™ foot and ankle system and the 

GRAFTJACKET® regenerative soft tissue product offer substantial market 

opportunities due to their unique designs and surgeon-supported 

clinical results.  

As we look to future growth and improving financial performance with 

the recent appointment of Gary D. Henley as the new President and 

CEO, supported by the current management team and working closely 

with the Board of Directors, Wright is in an excellent position for meeting 

its long-term objectives of low to mid-teens growth in top line revenues 

and producing equal or greater growth in operating income.  Also in 

the coming year, we anticipate continued strong competitive activity 

globally.  However, we believe that we are well positioned to address 

those competitive challenges.  Furthermore, by employing our targeted 

strategies for future sustained growth, performance and success over 

2006, we believe the long-term expectations of our stockholders, 

customers, and employees will be achieved.

Sincerely, 

F. Barry Bays

Executive Chairman of the Board 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations 

The following management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition 
and results of operations (MD&A) describes the principal factors affecting the 
results of our operations, financial condition, and changes in financial 
condition, as well as our critical accounting estimates. MD&A is organized as 
follows: 
 
Executive overview. This section provides a general description and history 
of our business, a brief discussion of our principal product lines, significant 
developments in our business, and the opportunities, challenges and risks we 
focus on in the operation of our business.  
 
Net sales and expense components. This section provides a description of 
the significant line items on our consolidated statement of operations. 
 
Results of operations. This section provides our analysis of and outlook for 
the significant line items on our consolidated statement of operations.  
 
Seasonal Nature of Business. This section describes the effects of seasonal 
fluctuations in our business. 
 
Liquidity and capital resources. This section provides an analysis of our 
liquidity and cash flow and a discussion of our outstanding debt and 
commitments. 
 
Critical accounting estimates. This section discusses the accounting 
estimates that are considered important to our financial condition and results 
of operations and require us to exercise subjective or complex judgments in 
their application. All of our significant accounting policies, including our 
critical accounting estimates, are summarized in Note 2 to our consolidated 
financial statements in Item 8 of this report. 

 
 
Financial Statements 

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Consolidated Statements of Changes In Shareholders’ Equity 
 And Comprehensive Income 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over         
 Financial Reporting 
Corporate Information 
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Executive Overview 
Company Description. We are a global orthopaedic medical device company specializing in the design, manufacture and marketing of reconstructive joint 
devices and biologics products. Reconstructive joint devices are used to replace knee, hip and other joints that have deteriorated through disease or injury. 
Biologics are used to replace damaged or diseased bone, to stimulate bone growth, and to provide other biological solutions for surgeons and their patients. 
We have been in business for over 50 years and have built a well-known and respected brand name and strong relationships with orthopaedic surgeons.  

Our corporate headquarters and U.S. operations are located in Arlington, Tennessee, where we conduct our domestic research and development, 
manufacturing, warehousing, and administrative activities. Outside the U.S., we have research and development, manufacturing, and administrative 
facilities in Toulon, France; research, distribution and administrative facilities in Milan, Italy; and sales and distribution offices in Canada, Japan and 
throughout Europe. We market our products in over 60 countries through a global distribution system that consists of a sales force of approximately 750 
individuals who promote our products to orthopaedic surgeons and hospitals. At the end of 2005, we have approximately 320 exclusive independent 
distributors and sales associates in the U.S., and approximately 430 sales representatives internationally who are employed through a combination of our 
stocking distribution partners and direct sales offices.  
 
Company History. We were incorporated in November 1999 as a Delaware corporation, and had no operations until December 7, 1999, when we were 
reorganized by an investment group through the acquisition of our predecessor company, Wright Medical Technology, Inc. This transaction represented a 
recapitalization of our predecessor company. On December 22, 1999, we acquired Cremascoli Ortho Holding, S.A., an orthopaedic medical device company 
headquartered in Toulon, France. In 2001, we completed our IPO of 7,500,000 shares of common stock, which generated $84.8 million in net proceeds. In 
2002, we completed a secondary offering of 3,450,000 shares of common stock which generated $49.5 million in net proceeds.  
 
Principal Products. We primarily sell reconstructive joint devices and biologics products. Our reconstructive joint device sales are derived from three 
primary product lines: knees and hips, collectively referred to as our reconstructive large joint business, and extremities. Our biologics sales are derived 
from a broad portfolio of products designed to stimulate and augment the natural regenerative capabilities of the human body. We also sell orthopaedic 
products not considered to be part of our knee, hip, extremity or biologics product lines. 

Our hip joint reconstruction product portfolio provides offerings in the areas of bone-conserving implants, total hip reconstruction, revision replacement 
implants, and limb preservation. Our hip joint products include the CONSERVE® family of products, the PROFEMUR® Hip System, the LINEAGE® Acetabular 
System, the ANCA-FIT™ Hip System, and the PERFECTA® Hip System.  

Our biologics products focus on biological musculoskeletal repair and include synthetic and human tissue-based materials. Our principal biologics products 
include the GRAFTJACKET® soft tissue repair and containment membranes, the ALLOMATRIX® line of injectable tissue-based bone graft substitutes, the 
OSTEOSET® synthetic bone graft substitute, the MIIG® family of minimally-invasive injectable synthetic bone grafts, and in certain of our international 
markets, the ADCON® Gel anti-adhesion product.  

We offer extremity products for the hand, wrist, elbow, shoulder, foot and ankle in a number of markets worldwide. Our principal extremity products 
include the EVOLVE® Modular Radial Head device, the CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle System, the LOCON-T® and LOCON™ VLS Distal Radius Plating Systems, 
and the MICRONAIL™ Intramedullary Wrist Fracture Repair System. We also sell the Swanson™ line of finger and toe joint replacement products and the 
ORTHOSPHERE® Carpometacarpal Implant for repair of the basal thumb joint. 

Our knee reconstruction products position us well in the areas of total knee reconstruction, revision replacement implants, and limb preservation products. 
Our principal knee products include the ADVANCE® Knee System and the ADVANCE® Unicompartmental Knee System.  
 
Significant Business Developments. Net sales grew 7.3% in 2005, totaling $319.1 million, compared to $297.5 million in 2004. Our success is attributable 
to our focus on the high growth sectors of the orthopaedic industry, such as advanced bearing surfaces, modular necks and bone conserving implants within 
the hip market. Our hip, knee and extremity product lines contributed significantly to our performance in 2005, achieving 10%, 8%, and 11% growth rates, 
respectively.  

During 2005, our domestic biologics business declined by approximately 2% year-over-year. This decline was driven by the continued downward trend in 
sales of our DBM containing ALLOMATRIX® family of products due to competitive pressures in the mature market for DBM containing products. We anticipate 
that domestic sales of these products will continue to decline in 2006; however, we expect that these declines will be offset by sales growth of our 
GRAFTJACKET® soft tissue repair and containment membranes.  

During 2005, our international sales increased by approximately 4% as compared to 2004. This slower rate of growth is attributable to our markets in France 
and Italy, both of which declined year-over-year. These declines began in the fourth quarter of 2004 as a result of the transition of certain management and 
distribution personnel in Southern Europe. We anticipate that sales in France and Italy will continue to decline year-over-year in the first half of 2006. 
However, we believe that sales in these markets will grow in the latter half of 2006 as the personnel now in place successfully complete this transitional 
period. Sales in our other international markets increased by 17% in total during 2005 as compared to prior year. 

In mid-February 2005, we launched our internally-developed CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle System and transitioned our foot and ankle business from a line of 
products supplied by a third party vendor pursuant to a distribution agreement that expired in the first quarter of 2005. The CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle 
System offers a complete range of options for the most common foot and ankle surgical needs and includes six products that feature advanced design 
elements for simplicity, versatility, and high performance. During the fourth quarter of 2004, we incurred approximately $2.9 million of costs as a result of 
this transition to write down our distributed foot and ankle implant inventory to its estimated net realizable value and accelerated depreciation on the 
related surgical instrumentation. The success of our CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle system contributed significantly to the success of our extremity product 
line in 2005. 
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In June 2005, our premarket approval (PMA) application with the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for our ADCON® Gel product was 
withdrawn by management. Based on the progress of the review to date, management determined that in order to adequately address all of the 
requests made by the FDA in connection with their review of this application, withdrawal of the filing at this time was appropriate. Management is 
evaluating whether to continue to pursue re-submission for this product. If re-submitted, there can be no assurance that the FDA will accept another 
submission for filing in a timely manner or at all. 

In November 2005, we received marketing clearance from the FDA for our IGNITE® Bone Void Filler kits. This clearance was obtained based on satisfaction of 
the FDA’s requirements pursuant to a 510(k) premarket notification process that began with our submission of a 510(k). This submission was in response to 
the FDA’s clarification to all known manufacturers of DBM-containing products including us, that such products should be regulated under the medical device 
premarket notification provisions of the Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. As of December 31, 2005, all of the Company’s DBM-containing products currently 
produced and sold in the U.S. have received regulatory clearance.  
 
Significant Industry Factors. Our industry is impacted by numerous competitive, regulatory and other significant factors. The growth of our business relies 
on our ability to continue to develop new products and innovative technologies, obtain regulatory clearance and compliance for our products, protect the 
proprietary technology of our products and our manufacturing processes, manufacture our products cost-effectively, respond to competitive pressures 
specific to each of our geographic markets, including our ability to enforce non-compete agreements, and successfully market and distribute our products in 
a profitable manner. We, and the entire industry, are subject to extensive governmental regulation, primarily by the FDA. Failure to comply with regulatory 
requirements could have a material adverse effect on our business. Additionally, our industry is highly competitive and has recently experienced increased 
pricing pressures, specifically in the areas of reconstructive joints and biologic bone repair products. We devote significant resources to assessing and 
analyzing competitive, regulatory and economic risks and opportunities. A detailed discussion of these and other factors is provided in Item 1A of this report. 

 
Net Sales and Expense Components  
Net sales. We derive our net sales primarily from the sale of reconstructive joint devices and biologics products. An overview of our principal product lines  
is provided in “Executive Overview.”  

Cost of sales. Our cost of sales consists primarily of direct labor, allocated manufacturing overhead, raw materials and components, charges incurred for 
excess and obsolete inventories, royalty expenses associated with licensing technologies used in our products or processes, and certain other period 
expenses.  

Selling, general and administrative. Our selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, sales commissions, royalty and 
consulting expenses associated with our medical advisors, marketing costs, facility costs, legal costs, other general business and administrative expenses,  
and depreciation expense associated with surgical instruments required by surgeons to use when implanting our products.  

Research and development. Research and development expense includes costs associated with the design, development, testing, deployment, 
enhancement and regulatory approval of our products. 

Amortization of intangible assets. Our intangible assets consist of purchased intangibles related to completed technology, distribution channels and 
trademarks primarily resulting from our 1999 acquisition of Cremascoli, as well as distribution and product licenses, and non-compete agreements. We 
amortize intangible assets over periods ranging from 1 to 15 years.  

Stock-based expense. We incur non-cash stock-based expenses as a result of the amortization of non-cash deferred compensation that is recorded in 
accordance with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. This deferred compensation resulted following 
the issuance of stock options to employees and the sale of equity securities prior to the completion of our IPO when the estimated fair value of the securities 
was deemed, for financial reporting purposes, to have exceeded their respective exercise or sales price. Additionally, for stock-based incentives granted to 
consultants, we defer and amortize the fair value of such grants as calculated pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123. 

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Deferred compensation is amortized on a straight-line basis over the respective vesting periods of the stock-
based incentives, which is generally four years, and we immediately expense all non-cash stock-based compensation associated with the issuance of equity 
where no vesting restrictions apply.  

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share Based Payment (SFAS No. 123R), which requires the recognition of compensation 
expense for the fair value of share-based transactions. The fair value must be determined as of the date of grant using a valuation model such as Black-
Scholes or a lattice model. The resulting compensation will be recognized over the service period. In April 2005, the SEC amended Rule 4-01(a) of Regulation 
S-X regarding the compliance date for SFAS No. 123R. This amendment modified the effective date of SFAS No. 123R, requiring adoption of this standard on 
the first interim or annual reporting period of the first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, we adopted SFAS No. 123R effective 
January 1, 2006. Although management’s evaluation of SFAS No. 123R is not complete, we estimate that the amount of non-cash stock-based compensation 
that we will record in 2006 pursuant to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will be significant The effect on our historical results of operations of expensing the 
fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes model and the provisions of SFAS No. 123 is presented in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements in 
Item 8 of this report. 

Interest (income) expense, net. Interest (income) expense, net, consists primarily of interest on borrowings outstanding under our senior credit facility, 
capital lease agreements, and certain of our factoring agreements, as well as non-cash expenses associated with the amortization of deferred financing 
costs resulting from the origination of our senior credit facility. These expenses are offset by income generated by our invested cash balances and 

 investments in marketable securities. 
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Provision for income taxes. We record provisions for income taxes on earnings generated by both our domestic and international operations. Historically, 
our effective tax rates have varied from our statutory tax rates primarily due to research and development credits and changes in estimates related to our 
valuation allowances recorded against our net deferred tax assets.  
 
 
Results of Operations 
Comparison of the year ended December 31, 2005 to the year ended December 31, 2004 
 
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our results of operations expressed as dollar amounts (in thousands) and as percentages of net sales:  

 
 Year Ended December 31, 

 2005  2004 

 Amount  % of Sales  Amount  % of Sales 
Net sales $ 319,137  100.0 %  $ 297,539  100.0 % 
Cost of sales 91,740   28.7 %  84,183  28.3 % 
 Gross profit 227,397   71.3 %  213,356  71.7 % 
Operating expenses:        

Selling, general and administrative 166,916  52.3 %  151,144  50.8 % 
 Research and development 22,283  7.0 %  18,421  6.2 % 

Amortization of intangible assets 4,250   1.3 %  3,889  1.3 % 
 Stock-based expense 467   0.1 %  1,489  0.5 % 
Total operating expenses 193,916  60.8 %  174,943  58.8 % 

 Operating income 33,481   10.5 %  38,413  12.9 % 

Interest (income) expense, net (176)   (0.1)%  1,064  0.4 % 
Other expense (income), net 237   0.1 %  (74)  0.0 % 

Income before income taxes  33,420  10.5 %  37,423  12.6 % 
Provision for income taxes 12,355   3.9 %  13,401  4.5 % 

Net income  $ 21,065  6.6 %  $ 24,022       8.1 % 

 
The following table sets forth our net sales by product line for the periods indicated (in thousands) and the percentage of year-over-year change:  

 
 Year Ended 

December 31, 
2005 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2004 

 
% 

Change 
Hip products $ 109,267  $ 99,133  10.2 % 
Knee products 94,073  87,408  7.6 % 
Biologics products 62,358  62,070  0.5 % 
Extremity products 40,594  36,433  11.4 % 
Other 12,845  12,495  2.8 % 
Total net sales $ 319,137  $ 297,539  7.3 % 

 
The following graphs illustrate our product line sales as a percentage of total net sales for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004: 
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Net sales. Our net sales growth in 2005 was primarily attributable to the success of our domestic reconstructive joint business, as our domestic hip, 
extremity and knee product lines grew by 18%, 12%, and 11%, respectively. Domestic net sales totaled $197.5 million in 2005 and $180.4 million in 2004, 
representing approximately 62% and 61% of total net sales in 2005 and 2004, respectively, and growth of 10%. International net sales totaled $121.6 million 
in 2005, a 4% increase as compared to net sales of $117.2 million in 2004. This increase in international sales is attributable to continued growth in our Asian 
markets, which was partially offset by declines in our Italian and French markets due to the transition of management and distribution personnel in 
Southern Europe. 

Our hip product sales totaled $109.3 million in 2005, representing a 10% increase. Growth in our hip business in 2005 was primarily driven by our domestic 
markets, where total hip unit sales grew 13% as compared to 2004, reflecting the success of our CONSERVE® Total Implant with BFH™ Technology and our 
PROFEMUR® line of primary stems featuring our innovative neck modularity. Additionally, we have continued to note favorable shifts in our sales mix to 
premium priced hard bearing procedures, which include our ceramic-on-ceramic and metal-on-metal products, which further contributed to our domestic 
growth. In our international markets, hips sales increased by 2% to $52.0 million, as increased sales, primarily in Japan, were mostly offset by declines in 
Italy. 

Our extremity product sales increased to $40.6 million in 2005, representing growth of 11% over 2004, which is mainly attributable to increased unit sales of 
our EVOLVE® Modular Radial Head System and the successful mid-February 2005 launch of our CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle system.  Further contributing to 
our year-over-year growth were increased unit sales of our MICRONAIL™ intramedullary wrist fracture repair system and our LOCON-T® and LOCON™ VLS 
Distal Radius Plating Systems. 

Sales of our knee products totaled $94.1 million in 2005, representing growth of 8% as compared to 2004. This increase was primarily driven by increased 
unit sales of our ADVANCE® knee systems due to enhanced minimally invasive surgery (MIS) instrumentation and broader acceptance of our ADVANCE® 

Double-High tibial insert. International knee sales growth in Asia and certain European markets was partially offset by declines in France and Italy.  
Sales of our biologics products in 2005 totaled $62.4 million, and were relatively flat compared to prior year. The continued growth of our GRAFTJACKET® 
soft tissue repair and containment membranes in the U.S., as well as increased sales in Asia, were offset by declines of our DBM containing products in our 
domestic markets.  

As we look ahead in 2006, we anticipate continued growth within our reconstructive joint business. In our knee business, we look forward to continuing 
success as our minimally invasive surgical instrumentation continues to gain acceptance in the U.S. In our hip business, we anticipate that the strength of 
our hip product portfolio, which consists of our innovative bone-conserving implants, advanced bearing surfaces and modular neck technology, will lead to 
continued success in the market. Our extremity business should continue to strengthen, driven mostly by our CHARLOTTE™ foot and ankle system, our 
EVOLVE® Modular Radial Head system and our wrist fracture repair products. Within biologics, we expect sales of our GRAFTJACKET® tissue repair and 
containment membranes to continue to expand. 
 
Cost of sales. In 2005, our cost of sales as a percentage of net sales increased to 28.7% as compared to 28.3% in 2004. Cost of sales in 2005 included 
charges of approximately $1.5 million to write down inventory to its net realizable value due to the termination of an agreement to distribute certain third 
party spinal products in Europe. Cost of sales in 2004 included charges of approximately $2.4 million to write down certain foot and ankle inventory to its 
net realizable value as a result of the transition to our CHARLOTTE™ foot and ankle system.  The increase in cost of sales as a percentage of net sales is 
attributable to increased levels of fixed manufacturing costs and distribution costs, as well as shifts in our product line sales. Our cost of sales and 
corresponding gross profit percentages can be expected to fluctuate in future periods depending upon changes in our product sales mix and prices, 
distribution channels and geographies, manufacturing yields, period expenses and levels of production volume.  
 
Selling, general and administrative. Our selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales totaled 52.3% in 2005, a 1.5 
percentage point increase from 50.8% in 2004. This increase is primarily attributable to severance charges of approximately $1.6 million incurred during 
2005 related to the transition of management in our U.S. and European operations, charges of approximately $1.5 million related to a European distributor 
transition and the related legal dispute, increased investments in sales and marketing initiatives, and higher levels of legal fees. These increases were 
partially offset by the favorable resolution in the second quarter of 2005 of two liabilities assumed as part of our December 1999 acquisition of Cremascoli, 
lower expenses related to compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, reduced insurance costs, and the 2004 expenses related to our 
limited market withdrawal of certain CONSERVE® hip components and our foot and ankle product line transition. 

We anticipate that our selling, general and administrative expenses will increase in absolute dollars to the extent that any additional growth in net sales 
results in increases in sales commissions and royalty expense associated with those sales and requires us to expand our infrastructure. Further, in the near 
term, we anticipate that these expenses will increase as a percentage of net sales as we make strategic investments in order to grow our business, and as 
we record non-cash stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123R.  
 
Research and development. Our investment in research and development activities represented approximately 7.0% of net sales in 2005, as compared to 
6.2% in 2004. The increase was driven by elevated levels of investments in product development initiatives and increases in clinical and regulatory spending. 
Our key product launches in 2005 included our CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle System and our CONSERVE® BFH Advance Metal. 

For 2006, we anticipate that our research and development expenditures will increase as a percentage of net sales and in absolute dollars as we continue to 
increase our investment in product development initiatives and clinical studies to support regulatory approvals and provide expanded proof of the efficacy 
of our products, and as we record non-cash stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123R. 
 
Amortization of intangible assets. Non-cash charges associated with amortization of intangible assets totaled $4.3 million in 2005 versus $3.9 million in 
2004. Based on the intangible assets held at December 31, 2005, we expect to amortize approximately $4.0 million in 2006, $3.0 million in 2007, $2.7 
million in 2008, $2.4 million in 2009 and $350,000 in 2010. 
 



Management’s Discussion and Analysis                                                                                                                                                      Wright Medical Group, Inc. 

       
 
 

25 

 
 
 
 
Stock-based expense. We recognized $467,000 and $1.5 million of non-cash stock-based expense during 2005 and 2004, respectively. This decrease is due 
to lower levels of amortization of deferred compensation related to options issued prior to our initial public offering in 2001. 
 
Interest (income) expense, net. Interest (income) expense, net, consists of interest expense of approximately $1.9 million during both 2005 and 2004, 
primarily from borrowings under our senior credit facility, capital lease agreements, and certain of our factoring agreements, offset by interest income of 
approximately $2.0 million and $850,000 during 2005 and 2004, respectively, generated by our invested cash balances and investments in marketable 
securities. The increase in interest income is attributable to our investments in marketable securities during 2005. These investments are discussed further in 
Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report.  
 
Provision for income taxes. We recorded tax provisions of $12.4 million and $13.4 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our effective tax rate for 2005 
and 2004 was approximately 37% and 36%, respectively, which reflects the impact of research and development credits, changes in estimates related to the 
valuation allowances recorded against our deferred tax assets and, in 2005, the impact of the domestic manufacturers’ deduction included within the 
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. 

We expect our 2006 effective tax rate to be significantly higher than our historical effective tax rates as a result of the expense we will be required to record 
under the provisions of SFAS 123R. A significant portion of the non-cash stock-based compensation that we will recognize may not be deductible under U.S. 
and foreign tax regulations. We cannot reasonably estimate our overall effective tax rate for 2006, as we are unable to reasonably estimate the amount of 
future stock option grants and the related expense that will ultimately be deductible for tax purposes. 
 
Comparison of the year ended December 31, 2004 to the year ended December 31, 2003 
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our results of operations expressed as dollar amounts (in thousands) and as percentages of net sales: 
 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2004  2003 

 Amount  % of Sales  Amount  % of Sales 
Net sales $ 297,539  100.0 %  $ 248,932  100.0 % 
Cost of sales 84,183  28.3 %  67,815  27.2 % 
 Gross profit 213,356  71.7 %  181,117  72.8 % 
Operating expenses:        

Selling, general and administrative 151,144  50.8 %  127,612  51.3 % 
 Research and development 18,421  6.2 %  16,151  6.5 % 

Amortization of intangible assets 3,889  1.3 %  3,562  1.4 % 
 Stock-based expense 1,489  0.5 %  2,068  0.8 % 

Acquired in-process research and 
development costs -       -  4,558   1.8 % 

Total operating expenses 174,943  58.8 %  153,951   61.8 % 

 Operating income 38,413  12.9 %  27,166   10.9 % 

Interest expense, net 1,064  0.4 %  1,107   0.4 % 
Other income, net (74)  0.0 %  (1,060)   (0.4)% 

Income before income taxes  37,423  12.6 %  27,119  10.9 % 
Provision for income taxes 13,401  4.5 %  9,722  3.9 % 

Net income  $ 24,022       8.1 %  $ 17,397  7.0 % 

 
The following table sets forth our net sales by product line for the periods indicated (in thousands) and the percentage of year-over-year change:  
 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2004 

 Year Ended 
December 31, 

2003 

 
% 

Change 
Hip products $ 99,133  $ 78,071  27.0 % 
Knee products 87,408  78,338  11.6 % 
Biologics products 62,070  50,056  24.0 % 
Extremity products 36,433  31,876  14.3 % 
Other 12,495  10,591  18.0 % 
Total net sales $ 297,539  $ 248,932  19.5 % 
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The following graphs illustrate our product line sales as a percentage of total net sales for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003: 
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Net sales. Net sales growth in 2004 was attributable to increased sales across all of our principal product lines, with significant contributions from hips and 
biologics which grew by 27% and 24%, respectively, and solid growth in our extremity and knee business which grew by 14% and 12%, respectively. 
Geographically, our domestic net sales totaled $180.4 million in 2004 and $152.9 million in 2003, representing approximately 61% of total net sales in both 
years and growth of 18%. Our international net sales totaled $117.2 million in 2004, a 22% increase as compared to net sales of $96.1 million in 2003. Our 
2004 international net sales included a favorable currency impact of approximately $8.1 million when compared to 2003 net sales, principally resulting from 
the 2004 performance of the euro against the U.S. dollar. Our international growth was primarily driven by increased sales in our European and Asian 
markets, with expansion across all product lines. 

From a product line perspective, our net sales growth for 2004 was attributable to increases in sales across all of our principal product lines. For 2004, we 
experienced growth of 27%, 24%, 14% and 12%, in our hip, biologics, extremity, and knee product lines, respectively. Our most significant growth drivers in 
2004 were our hip and biologics product lines. During 2004, our 27% hip sales growth was attributable primarily to success in domestic markets, specifically 
driven by our CONSERVE® Total Implant with BFH™ Technology and our PROFEMUR® line of primary stems featuring our innovative neck modularity. In our 
international markets, unit sales growth of our CONSERVE® Plus Resurfacing Implant and a favorable currency impact of $4 million both impacted the year 
over year sales increase. The growth of our biologics business in 2004 was primarily attributable to the continued favorable performance, in domestic 
markets, of our GRAFTJACKET® soft tissue repair and containment membranes combined with the performance of our ADCON® Gel product in international 
markets. 
 
Cost of sales. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales increased to 28.3% in 2004 from 27.2% in 2003. Approximately 0.8 percentage points of this increase 
was attributable to $2.4 million of costs incurred during the fourth quarter of 2004 to write down certain foot and ankle implant inventory to its net 
realizable value as a result of the transition of this product line to our CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle System. The remaining increase as a percentage of sales 
was primarily attributable to higher levels of charges incurred for excess and obsolete inventories. 
   
Operating expenses. Our total operating expenses decreased, as a percentage of net sales, by 3 percentage points to 58.8% in 2004. Operating 
expenses include selling, general and administrative expenses, research and development expenses, amortization of intangibles, stock-based expenses 
and, in 2003, acquired in-process research and development costs. The decrease in operating expenses was primarily driven by the 2003 charge of $4.6 
million for in-process research and development. Further, our selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales decreased by 0.5 
percentage points, driven by lower royalty and commission expenses as a percentage of sales due to shifts in our geographic sales mix, which were partially 
offset by incremental corporate governance costs as well as charges associated with our limited market withdrawal of certain CONSERVE® hip components 
and our foot and ankle product line transition. Lower levels of stock-based expense also contributed to our year-over-year decrease in operating expenses as 
a percentage of net sales.  
 
In-process research and development cost. Upon consummation of our acquisition of certain ADCON® Gel technology assets from Gliatech Inc. in March 
2003, we immediately recognized as expense approximately $4.6 million in costs representing the estimated fair value of acquired in-process research and 
development (IPRD) that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements 
in Item 8 of this report.  

We engaged an independent third party to conduct a valuation of the intangible assets acquired. The value was determined by estimating the costs to 
develop the acquired IPRD into commercially viable products, estimating the resulting net cash flows from this project, and discounting the net cash flows 
back to their present values. An additional discount was applied to take into account the uncertainty surrounding the successful development and 
commercialization of the acquired IPRD. The resulting net cash flows from the project were based on management’s best estimates of revenue, cost of sales, 
research and development costs, selling, general and administrative costs, and income taxes from the project. A summary of the estimates used to calculate 
the net cash flows for the project is as follows: 

 

Project  

Year net cash  
in-flows expected to 

begin 

 
Discount rate including factor to 

account for uncertainty of success 

 

Acquired IPRD 

ADCON® Gel  2004  32.3%  $  4,558,000 
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ADCON® Gel products are designed to reduce adhesion formation following lumbar spine (ADCON®-L Gel) and peripheral tendon/nerve (ADCON®-T/N Gel) 
procedures, thus reducing or eliminating post-operative pain. Both ADCON®-L Gel and ADCON®-T/N Gel are commercially available internationally, but are 
currently not available for sale in the U.S. ADCON®-L Gel had previously received regulatory clearance from the FDA in 1998. In 2000, the FDA determined 
that the provisions of its Application Integrity Policy (AIP) would be applied to Gliatech due to violations of Good Clinical Practices in the conduct, analysis, 
and reporting of data specific to the U.S. Clinical Study of ADCON®-L Gel. In 2003, the FDA lifted the AIP status of Gliatech, which subsequently allowed us, 
as the new owner of the technology, to present the FDA with clinical data intended to support the return of ADCON®-L Gel to the U.S. market. However, in 
2005, our PMA application with the FDA for our ADCON® Gel product was withdrawn by management. Management is considering whether to continue to 
pursue re-submission for this product. If re-submitted, there can be no assurance that the FDA will accept another submission for filing in a timely manner 
or at all. 

We may use portions of our existing cash to continue to develop the acquired IPRD into commercially viable products. This development would consist 
primarily of the completion of all clinical evaluation testing activities and regulatory approvals that are necessary to establish the safety and efficacy of the 
products and to market them in the U.S. Bringing the acquired IPRD to market could also include testing the products for compatibility and interoperability 
with commercially viable products. Due to the history of the ADCON® Gel products with the FDA, we are unable to estimate the extent of research and 
development activities that will be necessary to develop these products into commercially viable products.  
 
Provision for income taxes. Our effective tax rate for both 2004 and 2003 was approximately 36%, which reflects the impact of research and 
development credits and changes in estimates related to the valuation allowances recorded against our deferred tax assets.  
 
Seasonal Nature of Business 
We traditionally experience lower sales volumes in the third quarter months than throughout the rest of the year as a result of the European holiday 
schedule. In addition, our first quarter selling, general and administrative expenses include additional expenses that we incur in connection with the annual 
meeting held by the American Academy of Orthopaedic Surgeons. This meeting, which is the largest orthopaedic meeting in the world, features the 
presentation of scientific papers and instructional courses for orthopaedic surgeons. During this 3-day event, we display our most recent and innovative 
products for these surgeons.  
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain liquidity measures (in thousands):  
 

 As of December 31, 
 2005 2004 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 51,277 $ 83,470 
Short-term marketable securities 25,000 - 
Working capital 196,126 189,803 
Line of credit availability 59,878 59,708 

 
During 2005, we invested $25 million of our excess cash balance in short-term marketable debt securities in order to increase our rate of return, resulting in a 
decrease in our cash and cash equivalents. Specifically, our investments in marketable securities at December 31, 2005, are available for redemption through an 
auction process every 21 or 49 days from initial purchase. While these investments are not considered cash equivalents for financial reporting purposes, due to the 
short-term nature of these investments, we do not believe that these investments will have an impact on our overall liquidity position.  
 
Operating Activities. Cash provided by operating activities totaled $5.3 million in the 2005, as compared to $37.4 million in 2004 and $40.1 million in 2003. The 
decrease in cash provided by operating activities in 2005 is primarily attributable to $25 million of cash invested in marketable securities and increased payments 
for estimated income taxes of approximately $8.8 million. Cash provided by operating activities in 2004 benefited from the profitability of our business and 
working capital management, which resulted primarily from improved collection of our outstanding receivables during 2004, which was offset by increased 
investments in new product inventory in order to prepare for anticipated product launches, as well as an increase of approximately $3.9 million for estimated tax 
payments.  
 
Investing Activities. Our capital expenditures totaled approximately $30.4 million in 2005, $18.3 million in 2004, and $18.1 million in 2003. The increase in 2005 
is primarily related to investments in minimally invasive surgical instrumentation for our hip and knee businesses. Our industry is capital intensive, particularly as 
it relates to surgical instrumentation. Historically, our capital expenditures have consisted of purchased manufacturing equipment, research and testing 
equipment, computer systems, office furniture and equipment, and surgical instruments. We expect to incur capital expenditures of approximately $30 million in 
total for 2006 for routine capital expenditures.  

In 2003, in addition to our routine capital expenditures, we paid $7.8 million to complete the purchase of IPRD, tangible assets, and intangible assets from 
Gliatech, which were primarily related to the ADCON® Gel technology. We are continuously evaluating opportunities to purchase technology and other forms of 
intellectual property and are, therefore, unable to predict the timing of future purchases. 
 
Financing Activities. During 2005, we made $5.0 million in scheduled payments related to borrowings under our senior credit facility and approximately $2.1 
million in payments related to our long-term capital leases. These payments were offset by proceeds of $2.9 million from the issuance of common stock under our 
stock-based compensation plans. In addition, our operating subsidiary in Italy continues to factor portions of its accounts receivable balances under factoring  
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agreements, which are considered financing transactions for financial reporting purposes. The cash proceeds received from these factoring agreements, net of 
the amount of factored receivables collected, are reflected as cash flows from financing activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows. The proceeds 
received under these agreements in 2005, 2004, and 2003 totaled approximately $8.0 million, $10.7 million, and $4.7 million, respectively. These proceeds 
were offset by payments for factored receivables collected of approximately $9.2 million and $10.8 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively. We recorded 
obligations of $3.5 million and $5.2 million for the amount of receivables factored under these agreements as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, 
which are included within “Accrued expenses and other current liabilities” in our consolidated balance sheet.  

In 2006, our debt payments will total $3.8 million based on the terms of our senior credit facility. Additionally, we will make continued payments under our 
long-term capital leases, including interest, of approximately $2.0 million in 2006. We anticipate that our factoring program in Italy will continue; however, 
the level and extent of the amounts factored under the agreement and the ultimate amount of proceeds received under the program cannot be predicted. 
Therefore, we are unable to predict the ultimate amount of proceeds that will be received in 2006 related to these factoring agreements.  
 
Contractual Cash Obligations. At December 31, 2005, we had contractual cash obligations and commercial commitments as follows (in thousands):  

 
 Payments Due by Periods 

 Total  2006  2007-2008  2009 - 2010  After 2010 

Amounts reflected in balance sheet: 

Notes payable $ 3,750  $ 3,750  $  -  $ -  $        - 
Capital lease obligations(1) 3,858  2,008  1,578  266  6 

Amounts not reflected in balance sheet: 
Operating leases 14,407  6,167  6,492  986  762 
Purchase obligations 5,160  5,160  -  -         - 
Royalty and consulting agreements 6,317  3,369  861  760  1,327 
Total contractual cash obligations $ 33,492  $ 20,454  $ 8,931  $  2,012  $ 2,095 

 (1) Payments include amounts representing interest 

 

Our senior credit facility, which we entered into in August 2001, has a five-year term and consists of $20 million in term loans, with an unpaid balance of 
approximately $3.8 million at December 31, 2005, and a revolving loan facility of up to $60 million. Borrowings under the senior credit facility are guaranteed 
by all of our subsidiaries and are collateralized by all of the assets of Wright Medical Technology, Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiary. The credit facility 
contains customary covenants including, among other things, restrictions on our ability to pay cash dividends, prepay debt, incur additional debt and sell 
assets. The credit facility also requires us to maintain certain financial covenants, including a specified consolidated leverage (or debt-to-equity) ratio and a 
specified consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio. In the event that we violate any covenants, we could be required to repay the remaining balance of the 
debt. Additionally, should we be required to repay the loan before its scheduled maturity, we would incur a charge to operating income for unamortized 
financing costs. At our option, borrowings under the credit facility bear interest either at a rate equal to a fixed base rate plus a spread of 0.75% to 1.25% or 
at a rate equal to an adjusted LIBOR plus a spread of 1.75% to 2.25%, depending on our consolidated leverage ratio, with a current annual rate of 5.7%. 
The amounts reflected in the table above for capital lease obligations represent future minimum lease payments under our capital lease agreements 
which are primarily for certain property and equipment. The present value of the minimum lease payments are recorded in our balance sheet at 
December 31, 2005. The minimum lease payments related to these leases are discussed further in Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements 
contained in Item 8 of this report. 

The amounts reflected in the table above for operating leases represent future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases 
primarily for certain equipment and office space. Portions of these payments are denominated in foreign currencies and were translated in the table 
above based on their respective U.S. dollar exchange rates at December 31, 2005. These future payments are subject to foreign currency exchange rate 
risk. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S., our operating leases are not recognized in our consolidated balance sheet; 
however, the minimum lease payments related to these agreements are disclosed in Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements contained in Item 
8 of this report. 

Our purchase obligations reflected in the table above consist of minimum purchase obligations related to certain supply agreements. The royalty and 
consulting agreements in the above table represent minimum payments to consultants that are contingent upon future services. Portions of these 
payments are denominated in foreign currencies and were translated in the table above based on their respective U.S. dollar exchange rates at 
December 31, 2005. These future payments are subject to foreign currency exchange rate risk. Our purchase obligations and royalty and consulting 
agreements are disclosed in Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements contained in Item 8 of this report. 

In addition to the contractual cash obligations discussed above, all of our domestic sales and a portion of our international sales are subject to 
commissions based on net sales, and a substantial portion of our global sales are subject to other royalties earned based on product sales. Further, 
under our factoring agreement in Italy, our liability for cash proceeds received of $3.5 million discussed in “Financing Activities” may be subject to 
repayment upon 15 days notice. None of these amounts are included in the table above. 
 
Other Liquidity Information. We have funded our cash needs since 2000 through various equity and debt issuances and through cash flow from operations.   
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In 2001, we completed our IPO of 7,500,000 shares of common stock which generated $84.8 million in net proceeds. In 2002, we completed a secondary 
offering of 3,450,000 shares of common stock which generated $49.5 million in net proceeds. 
In 2006, our senior credit facility will expire and it is our current intent to replace this credit facility with a new facility including a credit line equal to or 
greater than our current $60 million credit line. There can be no assurance that we will ultimately be able to replace our current credit facility with a new 
facility which includes a credit line of this level.  

Although it is difficult for us to predict our future liquidity requirements, we believe that our current cash balance of approximately $51.3 million, our 
marketable securities balance of $25.0 million, and our expected cash flow from our 2006 operations will be sufficient for the foreseeable future to fund 
our working capital requirements and operations, permit anticipated capital expenditures in 2006 of approximately $30 million, meet our contractual cash 
obligations in 2006, and fund any potential expansion of our current facilities or the construction of new facilities. 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates 
All of our significant accounting policies and estimates are described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements contained in Item 8 of this report. 
However, certain of our more critical accounting estimates require the application of significant judgment by management in selecting the appropriate 
assumptions in determining the estimate. By their nature, these judgments are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. We develop these judgments 
based on our historical experience, terms of existing contracts, our observance of trends in the industry, information provided by our customers, and 
information available from other outside sources, as appropriate. Different, reasonable estimates could have been used in the current period. 
Additionally, changes in accounting estimates are reasonably likely to occur from period to period. Both of these factors could have a material impact on 
the presentation of our financial condition, changes in financial condition or results of operations.  

We believe that the following financial estimates are both important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require 
subjective or complex judgments. Further, we believe that the items discussed below are properly recorded in the financial statements for all periods 
presented. Our management has discussed the development, selection, and disclosure of our most critical financial estimates with the audit committee of 
our Board of Directors and with our independent auditors. The judgments about those financial estimates are based on information available as of the date 
of the financial statements. Those financial estimates include: 
 
Revenue recognition. Our revenues are generated through two types of customers, hospitals and stocking distributors, with the majority of our revenue 
derived from sales to hospitals. Our products are sold through a network of independent sales representatives in the US and by a combination of employee 
sales representatives, independent sales representatives, and stocking distributors outside the U.S. We record revenues from sales to hospitals when the 
hospital takes title to the product, which is when the product is surgically implanted in a patient and a purchase order is received from the hospital. We 
view the receipt of a purchase order as the evidence of customer acceptance of the product. 

We record revenues from sales to our stocking distributors at the time the product is shipped to the distributor. Our stocking distributors, who sell the 
products to their customers, take title to the products and assume all risks of ownership. Our distributors are obligated to pay us within specified terms 
regardless of when, if ever, they sell the products. In general, our distributors do not have any rights of return or exchange; however, in limited situations 
we have repurchase agreements with certain stocking distributors. Those certain agreements require us to repurchase a specified percentage of the 
inventory purchased by the distributor within a specified period of time prior to the expiration of the contract. During those specified periods, we defer 
the applicable percentage of the sales. Approximately $170,000 and $90,000 of deferred revenue related to these types of agreements was recorded at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

We must make estimates of potential future product returns related to current period product revenue. To do so, we analyze our historical experience 
related to product returns when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for sales returns. Judgment must be used and estimates made in connection 
with establishing the allowance for product returns in any accounting period. Our allowances for product returns of approximately $430,000 and $400,000 
are included as a reduction of accounts receivable at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Should actual future returns vary significantly from our 
historical averages, our operating results could be affected. 
 
Allowances for doubtful accounts. We experience some credit loss on our accounts receivable and accordingly we must make estimates related to the 
ultimate collection of our accounts receivable. Specifically, we analyze our accounts receivable, historical bad debt experience, customer concentrations, 
customer creditworthiness, and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts.  
The majority of the Company’s receivables are from hospitals, many of which are government funded. Accordingly, the Company’s collection history with 
this class of customer has been favorable. Historically, the Company has experienced minimal bad debts from its hospital customers and more significant 
bad debts from certain international distributors, typically as a result of specific financial difficulty or geo-political factors. The Company writes off 
receivables when it determines that the receivables are uncollectible, typically upon customer bankruptcy or the customer’s non-response to collection 
efforts. 

We believe that the amount included in our allowance for doubtful accounts has been a historically accurate estimate of the amount of accounts 
receivable that are ultimately collected. While we believe that our allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate, the financial condition of our customers 
and the geo-political factors that impact reimbursement under individual countries’ healthcare systems can change rapidly and as such, additional 
allowances may be required in future periods. Our accounts receivable balance for both 2005 and 2004 was $61.7 million, net of allowances for doubtful 
accounts of $2.0 million and $1.8 million, at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
Excess and obsolete inventories. We value our inventory at the lower of the actual cost to purchase and/or manufacture the inventory or its net 
realizable value. We regularly review inventory quantities on hand for excess and obsolete inventory and, when circumstances indicate, we incur charges 
to write down inventories to their net realizable value. Our review of inventory for excess and obsolete quantities is based primarily on our estimated  
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forecast of product demand and production requirements for the next twenty-four months. A significant decrease in demand could result in an increase in 
the amount of excess inventory quantities on hand. Additionally, our industry is characterized by regular new product development that could result in an 
increase in the amount of obsolete inventory quantities on hand due to cannibalization of existing products. Also, our estimates of future product demand 
may prove to be inaccurate, in which case we may be required to incur charges for excess and obsolete inventory. In the future, if additional inventory  
write-downs are required, we would recognize additional cost of goods sold at the time of such determination. Regardless of changes in our estimates of 
future product demand, we do not increase the value of our inventory above its adjusted cost basis. Therefore, although we make every effort to ensure the 
accuracy of our forecasts of future product demand, significant unanticipated decreases in demand or technological developments could have a significant 
impact on the value of our inventory and our reported operating results.  

Charges incurred for excess and obsolete inventory were $6.9 million, $5.8 million and $2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. In 2004, charges incurred for excess and obsolete inventory included $2.4 million recorded to write down certain foot and ankle implant 
inventory to its net realizable value as a result of our transition to our CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle System. In 2005, we incurred approximately $1.5 million in 
charges within cost of sales to write down inventory to its net realizable value due to the termination of an agreement to distribute certain third party spinal 
products in Europe. 
 
Goodwill and long-lived assets. We have approximately $7.8 million of goodwill recorded as a result of acquisition of businesses. Goodwill is tested for 
impairment annually, or more frequently if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of events suggest that impairment exists. Based on our single business 
approach to decision-making, planning, and resource allocation, we have determined that we have only one reporting unit for purposes of evaluating 
goodwill for impairment. The annual evaluation of goodwill impairment requires the use of estimates and assumptions to determine the fair value of our 
reporting unit using projections of future cash flows. Our estimates of future sales growth rates and operating margin can significantly affect the outcome of 
the impairment test. We performed our annual impairment test during the fourth quarter of 2005 and determined that the fair value of our reporting unit 
exceeded its carrying value and, therefore, no impairment charge was necessary.  Our business is capital intensive, particularly as it relates to surgical 
instrumentation. We depreciate our property, plant and equipment and amortize our intangible assets based upon our estimate of the respective asset's 
useful life. Our estimate of the useful life of an asset requires us to make judgments about future events, such as product life cycles, new product 
development, product cannibalization and technological obsolescence, as well as other competitive factors beyond our control. We account for the 
impairment of long-lived assets in accordance SFAS No. 144.  
 
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Accordingly, we evaluate impairments of our property, plant and equipment based 
upon an analysis of estimated undiscounted future cash flows. If we determine that a change is required in the useful life of an asset, future 
depreciation/amortization is adjusted accordingly. Alternatively, should we determine that an asset has been impaired, an adjustment would be charged to 
income based on its fair market value, or discounted cash flows if the fair market value is not readily determinable, reducing income in that period.  
 
Product liability claims. Periodically, claims arise involving the use of our products. We make provisions for claims specifically identified for which we 
believe the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable and an estimate of the amount of loss has been developed. We have recorded at least the 
minimum estimated liability related to those claims where a range of loss has been established. As additional information becomes available, we reassess the 
estimated liability related to our pending claims and make revisions as necessary. Future revisions in our estimates of the liability could materially impact our 
results of operation and financial position. We maintain insurance coverage that limits the severity of any single claim as well as total amounts incurred per 
policy year, and we believe our insurance coverage is adequate. We use the best information available to us in determining the level of accrued product 
liabilities and we believe our accruals are adequate. During 2004, we recorded $500,000 in product liability reserves for probable losses following our 
announcement of a voluntary market withdrawal of a limited number of metal acetabular hip cups intended for use in our CONSERVE® hip systems. 

Management developed this estimate and believes that the amount recorded is appropriate based on assumptions with respect to estimated patient claims 
related to the market withdrawal and the acceptance of such claims by our insurer. The nature of a market withdrawal and the associated claims are such 
that the claims will occur over an extended period of time. Our estimate includes an assumption for unasserted claims based on management’s industry 
experience with similar circumstances. While we believe that the amount recorded related to the market withdrawal is appropriate, it is possible that 
changes in assumptions related to potential claims or insurance coverage could have an adverse effect on our estimate. Our accrual for product liability 
claims was approximately $850,000 and $1.0 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
Accounting for income taxes. Our effective tax rate is based on income by tax jurisdiction, statutory rates and tax saving initiatives available to us in the 
various jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant judgment is required in determining our effective tax rate and evaluating our tax positions. This process 
includes assessing temporary differences resulting from differing recognition of items for income tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in 
deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our consolidated balance sheet. Realization of deferred tax assets in each taxable jurisdiction is 
dependent on our ability to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize the benefits. Management evaluates deferred tax assets on an ongoing basis 
and provides valuation allowances to reduce net deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.  

We have recorded valuation allowances of $6.0 million and $6.8 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, due to uncertainties related to our 
ability to realize, before expiration, some of our deferred tax assets for both U.S. and foreign income tax purposes. These deferred tax assets primarily 
consist of the carry forward of certain net operating losses and general business tax credits. 

We operate within numerous taxing jurisdictions. We are subject to regulatory review or audit in virtually all of those jurisdictions and those reviews and 
audits may require extended periods of time to resolve. Management makes use of all available information and makes reasoned judgments regarding 
matters requiring interpretation in establishing tax expense, liabilities and reserves. We believe adequate provisions exist for income taxes for all periods and 
jurisdictions subject to review or audit. 
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Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 
In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs - An Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4 (SFAS No. 151). SFAS No. 151 will no longer allow 
companies to capitalize inventory costs on their balance sheet when the production defect rate varies significantly from the expected rate. All abnormal 
freight, handling and material waste will be treated as period expenses. Additionally, SFAS No. 151 requires that a facility’s fixed production overhead be 
charged to inventory based on a range of “normal” capacity. If the production level is abnormally low, unallocated overhead should be charged to current 
period expense. SFAS No. 151 is required to be adopted for annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005; accordingly, we will adopt SFAS No. 151 effective 
January 1, 2006. We do not believe that the impact of this standard will have a material impact on our results of operations or financial statements. 

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, which requires the recognition of compensation expense for the fair value of share-based transactions. In 
April 2005, the SEC amended Rule 4-01(a) of Regulation S-X regarding the compliance date for SFAS No. 123R. This amendment modified the effective dates 
of SFAS No. 123R, requiring adoption of this standard on the first interim or annual reporting period of the first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 
2005. Accordingly, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006. We further describe this pronouncement and its anticipated impact on 
our results of operations in “Net Sales and Expense Components – Stock-based expense.” The effect of expensing the fair value of stock options using the 
Black-Scholes model and the provisions of SFAS No. 123 on our historical results of operations is presented in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements 
in Item 8 of this report. 
 
In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which replaced APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS No. 
3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements. SFAS No. 154 changes the requirements for the accounting and reporting of a change in 
accounting principle and requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable 
to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. The Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 154 effective 
January 1, 2006. 
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
Interest Rate Risk 
Our exposure to interest rate risk arises principally from the variable rates associated with our credit facility. On December 31, 2005, we had 
borrowings of $3.8 million under our credit facility which are subject to a variable annual interest rate, which is currently 5.7% per year. The carrying 
value of these borrowings approximates fair value due to the variable rate. Based on this debt level, a 10% increase in the interest rate of all such 
borrowings would cause us to incur an increase in interest expense of approximately $21,000 on an annual basis. We currently do not hedge our 
exposure to interest rate fluctuations, but may do so in the future.  
 
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Fluctuations 
Fluctuations in the rate of exchange between the U.S. dollar and foreign currencies could adversely affect our financial results. Approximately 30% 
and 33% of our total net sales were denominated in foreign currencies during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and we 
expect that foreign currencies will continue to represent a similarly significant percentage of our net sales in the future. Costs related to these sales 
are largely denominated in the same respective currencies, thereby limiting our transaction risk exposure. However, for sales not denominated in U.S. 
dollars, if there is an increase in the rate at which a foreign currency is exchanged for U.S. dollars, it will require more of the foreign currency to 
equal a specified amount of U.S. dollars than before the rate increase. In such cases, if we price our products in the foreign currency, we will receive 
less in U.S. dollars than we did before the rate increase went into effect. If we price our products in U.S. dollars and competitors price their products 
in local currency, an increase in the relative strength of the U.S. dollar could result in our prices not being competitive in a market where business is 
transacted in the local currency.  
 
A substantial majority of our sales denominated in foreign currencies are derived from European Union countries and are denominated in the euro. 
Additionally, we have significant intercompany receivables from our foreign subsidiaries which are denominated in foreign currencies, principally the 
euro and the Japanese yen. Our principal exchange rate risk, therefore, exists between the U.S. dollar and the euro and the U.S. dollar and the yen. 
Fluctuations from the beginning to the end of any given reporting period result in the revaluation of our foreign currency-denominated intercompany 
receivables and payables, generating currency translation gains or losses that impact our non-operating income and expense levels in the respective 
period.  

As discussed in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report, we enter into certain short-term derivative financial 
instruments in the form of foreign currency forward contracts. These forward contracts are designed to mitigate our exposure to currency fluctuations 
in our intercompany balances denominated in euros, Japanese yen, British pounds, and Canadian dollars. Any change in the fair value of these 
forward contracts as a result of a fluctuation in a currency exchange rate is expected to be offset by a change in the value of the intercompany 
balance. These contracts are effectively closed at the end of each reporting period.  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Wright Medical Group, Inc.: 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wright Medical Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the 
related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2005. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Wright Medical Group, 
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 
ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the internal 
control over financial reporting of Wright Medical Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control - 
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 27, 2006 
expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting. 
 
 
 

 
  
Memphis, Tennessee 
February 27, 2006 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Wright Medical Group, Inc.: 
 
We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, 
that Wright Medical Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The 
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in 
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  A company's internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.   
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
In our opinion, management's assessment that Wright Medical Group, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Wright Medical Group, Inc. and subsidiaries 
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 
 
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance 
sheets of Wright Medical Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes 
in stockholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and our 
report dated February 27, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. 
 
 
 

 
 
Memphis, Tennessee 
February 27, 2006 
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Wright Medical Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets  (In thousands, except share data) 
 
 

 December 31, 

 2005  2004 
Assets:    
Current assets:    
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 51,277  $ 83,470 
   Marketable securities  25,000   - 
 Accounts receivable, net 61,729  61,662 
 Inventories 82,381  76,269 
 Prepaid expenses 11,025  4,822 
 Deferred income taxes 24,218  24,082 
 Other current assets 4,751  4,717 
  Total current assets 260,381  255,022 
    
Property, plant and equipment, net 81,206  70,207 
Goodwill 7,829  8,845 
Intangible assets, net 12,724  17,140 
Deferred income taxes 8,217  8,873 
Other assets 1,453  1,071 

  Total assets $ 371,810  $ 361,158 

 
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:    
Current liabilities:    
 Accounts payable $ 13,572  $ 13,969 
 Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 45,055  44,919 
 Current portion of long-term obligations 5,628  6,331 
  Total current liabilities 64,255  65,219 
Long-term obligations 1,728  5,952 
Deferred income taxes 151  26 
Other liabilities 13,668  13,892 
  Total liabilities 79,802  85,089 
    
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)    
    
Stockholders’ equity:    

Common stock, voting, $.01 par value, shares  
 authorized - 100,000,000; shares issued and  
 outstanding – 34,175,696 in 2005, 33,850,202 in 2004 342  339 

 Additional paid-in capital 274,312  269,944 
 Deferred compensation                                      –  (188)
 Accumulated other comprehensive income 11,957  21,642 
 Accumulated income (deficit)                                5,397  (15,668)

  Total stockholders’ equity 292,008  276,069 
 $ 371,810  $ 361,158 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 



Management’s Discussion and Analysis                                                                                                                                                      Wright Medical Group, Inc. 

       
 
 

36 

 
 
 
 

Wright Medical Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Operations  (In thousands, except per share data) 
 
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005  2004  2003 

Net sales $ 319,137  $   297,539  $ 248,932 
Cost of sales 91,740  84,183  67,815 

Gross profit 227,397  213,356  181,117 
Operating expenses:      

Selling, general and administrative 166,916  151,144  127,612 
Research and development 22,283  18,421  16,151 
Amortization of intangible assets 4,250  3,889  3,562 
Stock-based expense1  467  1,489  2,068 
Acquired in-process research and development costs -  -  4,558 

     Total operating expenses 193,916  174,943  153,951 

           Operating income 33,481  38,413  27,166 
Interest (income) expense, net (176)  1,064  1,107 
Other expense (income), net            237  (74)  (1,060)

Income before income taxes 33,420  37,423  27,119 
Provision for income taxes 12,355  13,401  9,722 

Net income $ 21,065  $ 24,022     $ 17,397 

Net income per share (Note 12):      

Basic $ 0.62  $ 0.72     $ 0.53 

Diluted $ 0.60  $  0.68     $ 0.50 

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding – basic 33,959  33,391  32,857 

Weighted-average number of shares outstanding – diluted 35,199  35,317  34,561 

 
 

 

                                                           
1 Amounts presented as non-cash stock-based expense consist of the following for the periods indicated:  
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005  2004  2003 

Cost of sales $ 12  $ 68  $ 107 
Selling, general and administrative 449  1,364  1,875 
Research and development 6  57  86 
 $ 467  $ 1,489  $ 2,068 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Wright Medical Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows   (In thousands) 
 
 
 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005  2004  2003 
Operating activities:      

Net income  $ 21,065  $ 24,022  $ 17,397 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash  
provided by operating activities:      

Depreciation 17,895  17,278  13,948 
Amortization of deferred financing costs 262  261  261 
Amortization of intangible assets 4,250  3,889  3,562 
Deferred income taxes (329)  5,068  4,565 
Stock-based expenses 467  1,489  2,068 
In-process research and development costs -  -  4,558 
Other 1,386  623  275 

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:      
Accounts receivable (5,177)  (3,811)  (11,359) 
Inventories (9,364)  (7,861)  (3,466) 
Marketable securities (25,000)  -  - 
Other current assets (6,062)  (3,223)  (676) 
Accounts payable 647  (849)             3,153 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 5,251  479  5,779 

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,291  37,365  40,065 

Investing activities:      
Capital expenditures (30,356)  (18,316)  (18,116) 
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (Note 3) (1,227)  (161)  (7,799) 
Other -  49  71 

Net cash used in investing activities (31,583)                      (18,428)  (25,844) 

Financing activities:      
Issuance of common stock 2,930  4,056  1,678 
Financing under factoring agreements, net (1,208)  (29)  4,680 
Payments of bank and other financing  (7,101)  (6,332)  (5,844) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (5,379)  (2,305)  514 

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents    (522)  267  463 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (32,193)  16,899  15,198 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 83,470  66,571  51,373 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 51,277  $    83,470  $    66,571 

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Wright Medical Group, Inc. 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005  (In thousands, except share data) 
  

  Common Stock, Voting       

  
Number of 

Shares Amount 

 
Additional 

Paid-in 
Capital 

Accumulated 
(Deficit) Income 

Deferred 
Compensation 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

Total 
Stockholders' 

Equity 

Balance at December 31, 2002  32,712,374 $  327  $ 260,640 $   (57,087)   $         (3,164) $ 4,283 $ 204,999 
2003 Activity:          

Net income  - -  -       17,397 - - 17,397 

Foreign currency translation  - -  - - - 11,392 11,392 

Total comprehensive income         28,789 
Issuance of common stock, 

net of costs  328,373 3 

 

1,675 - - - 1,678 

Tax benefit of employee stock 
option exercises  - - 

 

784 - - - 784 

Stock-based compensation  - - 
 

593 - 1,475 - 2,068 

Forfeiture of stock options  - - 
 

    (237) - 237 - - 

Balance at December 31, 2003  33,040,747 $  330 
 

$ 263,455 $    (39,690) $   (1,452) $  15,675 $ 
  

238,318 

2004 Activity:         

Net income  - -  - 24,022 - - 24,022 

Foreign currency translation  - -  - - - 5,967 5,967 

Total comprehensive income         29,989 
Issuance of common stock, 

net of  costs  809,455 9 
 

4,047 - - - 4,056 
Tax benefit of employee stock 

option exercises  - - 
 

2,217 - - - 2,217 

Stock-based compensation  - -  331 - 1,158 - 1,489 

Forfeiture of stock options  - -              (106) - 106 - - 

Balance at December 31, 2004  33,850,202 $ 339  $ 269,944 $    (15,668) $           (188) $ 21,642 $ 276,069 

2005 Activity:         

Net income  - -  - 21,065 - - 21,065 

Foreign currency translation  - -  - - -                   (9,685)              (9,685) 

Total comprehensive income     - - - - 11,380 
Issuance of common stock, 

net of costs  325,494 3 
 

2,927 - - - 2,930 
Tax benefit of employee stock 

option exercises  - - 
 

1,162 - - - 1,162 

Stock-based compensation  - -  288 - 179 - 467 

Forfeiture of stock options  - -                   (9) - 9 - - 

Balance at December  31, 2005  34,175,696 $ 342  $ 274,312 $ 5,397 $ - $ 11,957 $ 292,008 

 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 



Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements                                                                                                                                                 Wright Medical Group, Inc. 
 

 

       
 
 

39 

 
 
1.  Organization and Description of Business: 
Wright Medical Group, Inc. (the "Company"), through Wright Medical Technology, Inc. and other operating subsidiaries, is a global medical device company 
specializing in the design, manufacture and marketing of reconstructive joint devices and biologics products. The Company’s products are sold through a 
network of independent sales representatives in the United States (“U.S.”) and by a combination of employee sales representatives, independent sales 
representatives, and stocking distributors outside the U.S. The Company promotes its products in over 60 countries with principal markets in the U.S., 
Europe, and Japan. The Company is headquartered in suburban Memphis, Tennessee.  

The Company was incorporated on November 23, 1999 as a Delaware corporation (previously named Wright Acquisition Holdings, Inc.) and had no operations 
until an investment group led by Warburg, Pincus Equity Partners, L.P. ("Warburg") acquired majority ownership of Wright Medical Technology, Inc. (the 
"Predecessor Company") on December 7, 1999. This transaction, which represents a recapitalization of the Predecessor Company and the inception of the 
Company in its present form, was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.  

On December 22, 1999 the Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of Cremascoli Ortho Holding, S.A. ("Cremascoli"), an orthopaedic medical 
device company headquartered in Toulon, France. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the results 
of operations of Cremascoli have been included in the Company's consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition.  

On July 18, 2001, the Company completed its initial public offering (the "IPO"), issuing 7,500,000 shares of common stock which generated net proceeds of 
$84.8 million. On March 6, 2002, the Company and certain selling stockholders completed a secondary offering which generated net proceeds of $49.5 
million. 
 
2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 
Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned domestic and 
international subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  
 
Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. The most significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to revenue recognition, the determination of allowances for doubtful 
accounts and excess and obsolete inventories, the evaluation of goodwill and long-lived assets, product liability claims and accounting for income taxes. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or 
less.  
 
Marketable Securities. During 2005, the Company invested $25 million of its excess cash balance in marketable debt securities that are not considered 
cash equivalents. The Company classifies these debt securities as trading securities and includes these amounts as “Marketable Securities” in its consolidated 
balance sheet. The Company recognizes realized and unrealized gains or losses on the purchase or sale of these securities in the period incurred in the 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company did not incur any realized or unrealized gains or 
losses related to these securities. 
 
Inventories. The Company's inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out ("FIFO") basis. Inventory costs include material, labor 
costs and manufacturing overhead. The Company regularly reviews inventory quantities on hand for excess and obsolete inventory and, when circumstances 
indicate, the Company incurs charges to write down inventories to their net realizable value. The Company’s review of inventory for excess and obsolete 
quantities is based primarily on its estimated forecast of product demand and production requirements for the next twenty-four months. Charges incurred for 
excess and obsolete inventory were $6.9 million, $5.8 million and $2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. In 2005, 
charges incurred for excess and obsolete inventory included $1.5 million recorded to write down certain inventory to its net realizable value due to the 
termination of an agreement to distribute certain third party spinal products in Europe. In 2004, charges incurred for excess and obsolete inventory included 
$2.4 million recorded to write down certain foot and ankle implant inventory to its net realizable value as a result of the Company’s transition to the 
CHARLOTTE™ Foot and Ankle System from a line of products supplied by a third party vendor pursuant to a distribution agreement that expired in the first 
quarter of 2005. 
 
Product Liability Claims. The Company makes provisions for claims specifically identified for which it believes the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is 
probable and an estimate of the amount of loss has been developed. The Company has recorded at least the minimum estimated liability related to those 
claims where a range of loss has been established. The Company’s accrual for product liability claims was approximately $850,000 and $1.0 million at 
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company's property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation, which includes amortization of assets 
under capital lease, is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives based on the following categories:  
 

Land improvements 15 to 25 years 
Buildings 10 to 45 years 
Machinery and equipment 3 to 20 years 
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 1 to 14 years 
Surgical instruments 5 to 6 years 
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Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are charged to 
expense as incurred. Upon sale or retirement, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the respective accounts and any 
resulting gain or loss is included in income.  
 
Intangible Assets and Goodwill. Goodwill is recognized for the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill 
is required to be tested for impairment at least annually. Unless circumstances otherwise dictate, we perform our annual impairment test in the fourth 
quarter. Accordingly, during the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company evaluated goodwill for impairment and determined that the fair values of its reporting 
unit exceeded its carrying value, indicating that goodwill was not impaired. Based on the Company’s single business approach to decision-making, planning, 
and resource allocation, management has determined that the Company has only one reporting unit for purposes of evaluating goodwill for impairment. 

The Company’s intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized on a straight line basis over their respective estimated useful lives to their 
estimated residual values, and are reviewed for impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, Accounting 
for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. The weighted average amortization periods for completed technology, distribution channels, trademarks and 
licenses are 8 years, 10 years, 9 years, and 6 years, respectively. The weighted average amortization period of the Company’s intangible assets on a 
combined basis is 8 years. 
 
Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. Management periodically evaluates carrying values of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets, when events and circumstances indicate that these assets may have been impaired. The Company accounts for the impairment of long-
lived assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. Accordingly, the Company evaluates 
impairment of its property, plant and equipment based upon an analysis of estimated undiscounted future cash flows. If it is determined that a change is 
required in the useful life of an asset, future depreciation/amortization is adjusted accordingly. Alternatively, should the Company determine that an asset is 
impaired, an adjustment would be charged to income based on its fair market value, or discounted cash flows if the fair market value is not readily 
determinable, reducing income in that period.  
 
Allowances for Doubtful Accounts. The Company experiences some credit loss on its accounts receivable and accordingly it must make estimates related 
to the ultimate collection of its accounts receivable. Specifically, management analyzes the Company’s accounts receivable, historical bad debt experience, 
customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, and current economic trends, when evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for doubtful accounts.  
The majority of the Company’s receivables are from hospitals, many of which are government funded. Accordingly, the Company’s collection history with 
this class of customer has been favorable. Historically, the Company has experienced minimal bad debts from its hospital customers and more significant bad 
debts from certain international distributors, typically as a result of specific financial difficulty or geo-political factors. The Company writes off receivables 
when it determines that the receivables are uncollectible, typically upon customer bankruptcy or the customer’s non-response to collection efforts. The 
Company's allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $2.0 million and $1.8 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 
Concentrations of Supply of Raw Material. The Company relies on a limited number of suppliers for the components used in the Company’s products. 
The Company’s reconstructive joint devices are produced from various surgical grades of titanium, cobalt chrome and stainless steel, various grades of high-
density polyethylenes, silicone elastomer and ceramics. The Company relies on one supplier for the silicone elastomer used in the Company’s extremity 
products. The Company is aware of only two suppliers of silicone elastomer to the medical device industry for permanent implant usage. Further, the 
Company relies on one supplier of ceramics for use in the Company’s hip products. In addition, for the Company’s biologics products, it presently depends on 
a single source for demineralized bone matrix (“DBM”) and cancellous bone matrix (“CBM”) materials. Two not-for-profit tissue banks supplied the Company 
with all of the DBM and CBM that it used in 2005 in its allograft products. Further, the Company relies on one supplier for its GRAFTJACKET® family of soft 
tissue repair and graft containment products, as well as one supplier for its ADCON® Gel products.  
 
Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS No. 109”). The Company’s 
effective tax rate is based on income by tax jurisdiction, statutory rates and tax saving initiatives available to it in the various jurisdictions in which it 
operates. Significant judgment is required in determining the Company’s effective tax rate and evaluating its tax positions. This process includes assessing 
temporary differences resulting from differing recognition of items for income tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets 
and liabilities, which are included within the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.  
 
Revenue Recognition. The Company’s revenues are generated through two types of customers, hospitals and stocking distributors, with the majority of the 
Company’s revenue derived from sales to hospitals. The Company’s products are sold through a network of independent sales representatives in the U.S. and 
by a combination of employee sales representatives, independent sales representatives, and stocking distributors outside the U.S. Revenues from sales to 
hospitals are recorded when the hospital takes title to the product, which is when the product is surgically implanted in a patient and a purchase order is 
received from the hospital. The Company views the receipt of a purchase order as the evidence of customer acceptance of the product. 

The Company records revenues from sales to its stocking distributors outside the U.S. at the time the product is shipped to the distributor. Stocking 
distributors, who sell the products to their customers, take title to the products and assume all risks of ownership. The Company’s distributors are obligated 
to pay within specified terms regardless of when, if ever, they sell the products. In general, the distributors do not have any rights of return or exchange; 
however, in limited situations the Company has repurchase agreements with certain stocking distributors. Those certain agreements require the Company to 
repurchase a specified percentage of the inventory purchased by the distributor within a specified period of time prior to the expiration of the contract. 
During those specified periods, the Company defers the applicable percentage of the sales. Approximately $170,000 and $90,000 of deferred revenue related 
to these types of agreements was recorded at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
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The Company must make estimates of potential future product returns related to current period product revenue. The Company develops these estimates by 
analyzing historical experience related to product returns. Judgment must be used and estimates made in connection with establishing the allowance for 
sales returns in any accounting period. An allowance for sales returns of approximately $430,00 and $400,000 is included as a reduction of accounts 
receivable at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  
 
Shipping and Handling Costs. The Company incurs shipping and handling costs associated with the shipment of goods to customers, independent 
distributors and its subsidiaries. All shipping and handling amounts billed to customers are included in net sales. All shipping and handling costs associated 
with the shipment of goods to customers are included in cost of sales. All other shipping and handling costs are included in selling, general and administrative 
expenses. 
 
Research and Development Costs. Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred. 
 
Foreign Currency Translation. The financial statements of the Company's international subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange 
rate at the balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and the weighted average exchange rate for the applicable period for revenues, expenses, gains and 
losses. Translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of comprehensive income. Gains and losses resulting from transactions denominated in 
a currency other than the local functional currency are included in “Other expense (income), net.”  
 
Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity during a period related to transactions and other events and 
circumstances from non-owner sources. It includes all changes in equity during a period except those resulting from investments by owners and distributions 
to owners. The difference between the Company’s net income and its comprehensive income is wholly attributable to foreign currency translation.  
 
Stock-Based Compensation. At December 31, 2005, the Company has two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described in Note 13. The 
Company accounts for those plans under the intrinsic value method in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25.  
 
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. Accordingly, compensation cost related to stock option grants to employees has been recognized only to the 
extent that the fair market value of the stock exceeds the exercise price of the stock option at the date of the grant. Non-employee stock-based 
compensation is accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.  

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 
123 to non-cash stock-based employee compensation (in thousands, except per share amounts):  
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005  2004  2003 

      
Net income, as reported $ 21,065 $ 24,022 $ 17,397 
Add: Stock-based employee compensation cost recognized under intrinsic value 

method, net of tax effects 151  681  920 
Less: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based 

method, net of tax effects               (12,972)                   (8,626)  (4,334)  
Pro forma net income  $ 8,244 $ 16,077 $    13,983 

Net income per share:      
 Basic, as reported $ 0.62 $ 0.72 $ 0.53 
 Basic, pro forma $ 0.24 $ 0.48 $ 0.43 

 Diluted, as reported $ 0.60 $ 0.68 $ 0.50 

 Diluted, pro forma $ 0.24 $ 0.47 $ 0.41 

 
In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”), effective 
for interim or annual reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2005. SFAS No. 123R requires the recognition of compensation expense for the fair value of 
share-based transactions. The fair value must be determined as of the date of grant using a valuation model such as Black-Scholes or a binomial lattice 
model. In April 2005, the SEC amended Rule 4-01(a) of Regulation S-X regarding the compliance date for SFAS No. 123R. This amendment modified the 
effective dates of SFAS No. 123R, requiring adoption of this standard on the first interim or annual reporting period of the first fiscal year beginning on or 
after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006. Although management’s evaluation of SFAS No. 123R is not 
complete, the Company estimates that the amount of non-cash stock-based compensation that it will record in 2006 pursuant to the adoption of SFAS No. 
123R will be significant. The effect on the Company’s historical results of operations of expensing the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes  
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model and the provisions of SFAS No. 123 is presented in the table above. Note 13 provides information related to the Company’s assumptions in 
applying the Black-Scholes methodology to its option grants. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and notes payable 
approximates the fair value of these financial instruments at December 31, 2005 and 2004 due to their short maturities or variable rates.  
 
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The Company accounts for derivative instruments and hedging activities under SFAS No. 133, 
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by SFAS No. 138. Accordingly, all of the Company’s derivative instruments 
are recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or liability and measured at fair value. The changes in the derivative's fair value are recognized 
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. 

The Company employs a derivative program, which began in 2004, using 30-day foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate the risk of currency 
fluctuations on its intercompany receivable and payable balances that are denominated in foreign currencies. These forward contracts are expected 
to offset the transactional gains and losses on the related intercompany balances. These forward contracts are not designated as hedging instruments 
under SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the changes in the fair value and the settlement of the contracts are recognized in the period incurred in the 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations. 

The Company recorded net gains of approximately $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, and net losses of approximately $790,000 
during the year ended December 31, 2004, on foreign currency contracts, which are included in “Other (income) expense, net” in the Company’s 
consolidated statements of operations. These gains and losses substantially offset translation losses and gains recorded on the Company’s 
intercompany receivable and payable balances, also included in “Other (income) expense, net.” At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had no 
foreign currency contracts outstanding. 
 
Supplemental Cash Flow Information. Cash paid for interest expense and income taxes was as follows (in thousands):  
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005 2004 2003 

Interest $  657 $  717 $  994 
Income taxes $  17,057 $  8,289 $  4,411 

 
During 2004, the Company favorably resolved certain income tax contingencies associated with the Company’s acquisition of Cremascoli, resulting in a 
decrease in goodwill of approximately $3.0 million. Additionally, the Company entered into capital leases of approximately $1.6 million, $1.1 million, 
and $630,000 during 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. 
 
Reclassifications. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.  
 
Recent Pronouncements. In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs - An Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4 (“SFAS No. 
151”). SFAS No. 151 will no longer allow companies to capitalize inventory costs on their balance sheet when the production defect rate varies 
significantly from the expected rate. All abnormal freight, handling and material waste will be treated as period expenses. Additionally, SFAS No. 151 
requires that a facility’s fixed production overhead be charged to inventory based on a range of “normal” capacity. If the production level is 
abnormally low, unallocated overhead should be charged to current period expense. SFAS No. 151 is required to be adopted for annual periods 
beginning after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, the Company will adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 151 effective January 1, 2006. Management does not 
believe that the impact of this statement will have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial statements. 

In April 2005, the SEC amended Rule 4-01(a) of Regulation S-X regarding the compliance date for SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), Share Based Payment 
(“SFAS No. 123R”). This amendment modified the effective dates of SFAS No. 123R, requiring adoption of this standard on the first interim or annual 
reporting period of the first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 2005. Accordingly, the Company will adopt SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 
2006. The Company anticipates that it will record material amounts of incremental non-cash stock-based expense in future periods following the 
adoption of SFAS No. 123R.   

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, which replaced APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and 
SFAS No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements. SFAS No. 154 changes the requirements for the accounting and reporting of 
a change in accounting principle and requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle, 
unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. The Company will adopt the 
provisions of SFAS No. 154 effective January 1, 2006. 

 
3.  Acquisition of Assets:                                                                                                                                                                     
On March 5, 2003, the Company completed an acquisition of certain assets from Gliatech Inc. related to its ADCON® Gel technology for $8.4 million in 
cash. Additionally, the Company entered into a royalty agreement that requires the Company to pay a royalty on future product sales. The Company 
paid $840,000 of the purchase price as a deposit in the fourth quarter of 2002, and $3.4 million in the first quarter of 2003. The remaining $4.2 million 
was paid in the second quarter of 2003 upon final receipt of all assets. The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price (in 
thousands): 
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Inventories $  1,312 
Property, plant and equipment 160 
Acquired in-process research and development 4,558 
Intangible assets:  

Completed Technology 1,575 
Trademarks 554 
Other 286 

 $  8,445 

 
In connection with the acquisition of these assets, the Company engaged an independent third party to conduct a valuation of the intangible assets acquired. 
The value assigned to acquired in-process research and development (“IPRD”) was $4.6 million of the purchase price. Accordingly, this amount was expensed 
in the first quarter of 2003. The value assigned to IPRD was determined by estimating the costs to develop the IPRD into commercially viable products, 
estimating the resulting cash flows from such projects, and discounting the net cash flows using a 32% risk adjusted discount rate. This discount rate 
reflected uncertainties surrounding the successful development of the IPRD. 

In June 2005, the Company’s pre-market approval application (PMA) with the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for the ADCON® Gel 
product was withdrawn.  Based on the progress of the review to date, the Company determined that in order to adequately address the requests made by the 
FDA in connection with the review of the application, withdrawal of the filing at this time is appropriate. The Company is evaluating whether to continue to 
pursue re-submission. If re-submitted, there can be no assurance that the FDA will accept another submission in a timely manner or at all. 
 
4.  Inventories: 
Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):  

 December 31, 

 2005  2004 

Raw materials $ 4,186  $ 3,373 
Work-in-process 14,417  14,306 
Finished goods 63,778  58,590 

 $ 82,381  $ 76,269 

 
5.  Property, Plant and Equipment: 
Property, plant and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):  

 December 31, 
 2005  2004 

Land and land improvements $ 2,329  $ 1,944 
Buildings 8,458  8,773 
Machinery and equipment 33,530  31,849 
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 29,193  25,444 
Construction in progress 2,654  2,284 
Surgical instruments 72,088  56,963 
 148,252  127,257 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (67,046)  (57,050) 

 $ 81,206  $ 70,207 

 
The components of property, plant and equipment recorded under capital leases consist of the following (in thousands): 

 December 31, 

 2005  2004 

Land and land improvements $ 235  $ 269 
Buildings 3,018  3,247 
Machinery and equipment 6,346  8,103 
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2,309  2,135 
 11,908  13,754 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,663)  (5,940) 

 $ 6,245  $ 7,814 

 
Depreciation expense approximated $17.9 million, $17.3 million, and $13.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively,  
and included amortization of assets under capital leases.  
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6.  Goodwill and Intangible Assets: 
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill occurring during the year ended December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands): 
 

Goodwill, at December 31, 2004  $ 8,845  

Less:  Foreign currency translation   (1,016)  

Goodwill, at December 31, 2005  $ 7,829 

 
The components of the Company’s identifiable intangible assets are as follows (in thousands): 

 

 December 31, 2005  December 31, 2004 

 
 

Cost 
Accumulated 
Amortization  

 
Cost 

Accumulated 
Amortization 

Distribution channels $ 18,173 $ 10,908  $ 20,797 $ 10,399 
Completed technology 5,243 2,353  5,348 1,733 
Licenses 2,756 1,847  2,683 1,538 
Trademarks 657 230  657 152 
Other 4,014 2,781  3,303 1,826 

 30,843 $ 18,119  32,788 $ 15,648 

Less: Accumulated amortization (18,119)        (15,648)  

Intangible assets, net $ 12,724   $ 17,140  

 
Based on the intangible assets held at December 31, 2005, we expect to amortize approximately $4.0 million in 2006, $3.0 million in 2007, $2.7 million  
in 2008, $2.4 million in 2009 and $350,000 in 2010. 
 
7.   Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities: 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):  

 
 December 31, 

 2005  2004 
Employee benefits $ 10,873  $ 11,476 
Advances from factoring arrangement 3,547  5,242 
Royalties 4,455  4,664 
Taxes other than income 5,604  4,120 
Commissions 3,982  3,818 
Professional fees 3,994  3,129 
Purchased technology 1,500  1,500 
Legal  1,429  1,153 
Other 9,671  9,817 

 $ 45,055  $ 44,919 

 
8.  Long-Term Obligations: 
Long-term obligations consist of the following (in thousands):  
 

 December 31, 
 2005 2004 

Notes payable $ 3,750 $ 8,750 
Capital lease obligations 3,606 3,533 

 7,356 12,283 

Less: current portion                                                                                                       (5,628)           (6,331) 

 $ 1,728 $ 5,952 

 
In August 2001, the Company entered into a five-year senior credit facility with a syndicate of commercial banks. This senior credit facility consists of 
$20 million in term loans and a revolving loan facility of up to $60 million. The Company had borrowings outstanding under the term loan of $3.8 million  
and $8.8 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.  The remaining balance under the term loan will be repaid in 2006 in accordance with the 
company’s credit agreement. 
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Borrowings under the senior credit facility are guaranteed by all of the Company’s subsidiaries and collateralized by all of the assets of Wright Medical 
Technology, Inc., the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary. The credit facility contains customary covenants including, among other things, restrictions on the 
ability to pay cash dividends, prepay debt, incur additional debt and sell assets. The credit facility also requires the Company to maintain certain financial 
covenants, including a specified consolidated leverage (or debt-to-equity) ratio and a specified consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio. In the event that 
the Company violates any covenants, it could be required to repay the remaining balance of the debt. Additionally, should the Company be required to repay 
the loan before its scheduled maturity, a charge to operating income for unamortized financing costs would be incurred. At the Company’s option, 
borrowings under the credit facility bear interest either at a rate equal to a fixed base rate plus a spread of 0.75% to 1.25% or at a rate equal to an adjusted 
LIBOR plus a spread of 1.75% to 2.25%, depending on the consolidated leverage ratio, with a current annual rate of 5.7%. 
 
At December 31, 2005, the Company had availability under committed credit facilities, after considering outstanding letters of credit, totaling $59.9 million. 
 
As discussed in Note 5, the Company has acquired certain property and equipment pursuant to capital leases. These leases have various maturity dates 
ranging from one to seven years with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 8.9%. At December 31, 2005, future minimum lease payments under capital lease 
obligations, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments, are as follows (in thousands):  
 

2006 $ 2,008 
2007 1,179 
2008 399 
2009 172 
2010 94 
Thereafter 6 

Total minimum payments 3,858 

Less amount representing interest (252) 

Present value of minimum lease payments 3,606 
Current portion (1,878) 

Long-term portion $ 1,728 

 
9.   Other Long-Term Liabilities: 
Other long-term liabilities consist of the following (in thousands): 
 

 December 31, 
 2005  2004 
Accrued income taxes payable $ 13,045  $ 12,951 
Other  623  941 
 $ 13,668  $ 13,892 

 
10.  Capital Stock: 
Common Stock. The Company is authorized to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of voting common stock. The Company has 65,824,304 shares of voting 
common stock available for future issuance at December 31, 2005.  
 
Warrants. In connection with the December 1999 recapitalization, the Company issued warrants to stockholders and certain employees to purchase an 
aggregate of 727,276 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $4.35 per share. The warrants were exercisable at any time after 
issuance and, unless exercised, expired five years from the date of issuance. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, warrants for 353,209 and 
6,691 shares were exercised, respectively. All warrants were exercised as of December 31, 2004. 
 
11.  Income Taxes:  
The components of the Company's income before income taxes are as follows (in thousands):  
 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2005  2004  2003 
Domestic $ 43,588  $ 40,437  $ 25,675 
Foreign (10,168)  (3,014)  1,444 

Income before income taxes  $ 33,420  $ 37,423  $ 27,119 
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The components of the Company’s provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):  
 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2005  2004  2003 
Current provision:      

Domestic:      
 Federal $ 9,777  $ 12,815  $ 3,080 

 State 1,709  811  203 
Foreign 1,385  4,401  1,404 

Deferred provision (benefit):      
Domestic:      
 Federal 3,013  (197)  4,313 
 State 605  803  1,098 
Foreign (4,134)  (5,232)  (376) 

Total provision for income taxes $ 12,355  $ 13,401  $ 9,722 

 
A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company's effective income tax rate is as follows:  

 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2005  2004  2003 
Income tax provision at statutory rate 35.0%  35.0%  35.0% 
State tax provision 5.3%  4.8%  4.4% 
Change in valuation allowance (1.2%)  (3.1%)  4.5%
Meals and entertainment limitation 1.5%  1.0%  1.2% 
Research and development credit (2.3%)  (2.6%)  (9.9%) 
Tax exempt interest (1.2%)  -  - 
Other, net (0.1%)  0.7%  0.7% 

Total 37.0%  35.8% 35.9%  

 
The significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):  

 

 December 31, 

 2005  2004 
Deferred tax assets:    
Operating loss carryforwards $ 13,924  $ 13,755 
General business credit carryforward 2,341  2,309 
Alternative minimum tax credits -  621 

Reserves and allowances 18,031  19,399 
Amortization 5,230  5,660 
Other 11,856  11,718 
Valuation allowance (5,964)  (6,820)

Total deferred tax assets 45,418  46,642 

Deferred tax liabilities:    
Depreciation 6,205  4,523 
Acquired intangible assets 2,661  3,767 
Other 4,297  5,570 

Total deferred tax liabilities 13,163  13,860 

Net deferred tax assets  $ 32,255  $ 32,782 

 
Provisions for federal income taxes are not made on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries when earnings are considered permanently invested. 
Deferred taxes are not provided for temporary differences related to earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries that are intended to be permanently reinvested. At  
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December 31, 2005, the Company did not have undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, as total earnings from these subsidiaries have been offset by 
losses. 
At December 31, 2005, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for U.S. federal income tax purposes of approximately $15.2 million, which expire 
in 2017 and 2018. Additionally, the Company had general business credit carryforwards of approximately $2.3 million, which expire beginning in 2007 and 
extending through 2016. At December 31, 2005, the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $25.4 million, of which $4.5 
million expires beginning in 2009 and extending through 2015.  
Certain of the Company’s U.S. and foreign net operating losses and general business credit carryforwards are subject to various limitations. The Company 
maintains valuation allowances for these net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards that are expected to expire unused due to these limitations. 
 
 
12.  Earnings Per Share: 
SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share, requires the presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the 
weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated to include any dilutive effect of the 
Company's common stock equivalents, which consist of stock options and warrants. The dilutive effect of such instruments is calculated using the 
treasury-stock method.  
The weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share purposes is as follows (in thousands):  
 

 Year Ended December 31, 
 2005  2004  2003 
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding - basic 33,959  33,391  32,857 
Common stock equivalents 1,240  1,926  1,704 
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding - diluted 35,199  35,317  34,561 

 
 
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, options to purchase approximately 2.7 million, 1.7 million and 671,000, respectively, shares of the 
Company’s common stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because the effect was antidilutive. These stock options were 
antidilutive because the exercise price of the options was greater than the average market price of common stock for the respective period. 
 
 
13.  Stock Option Plans: 
At December 31, 2005, the Company has two stock-based incentive plans, which are described below. As permitted by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation, the Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock option plan. 
Accordingly, compensation cost related to stock option grants to employees has been recognized only to the extent that the fair market value of the stock 
exceeds the exercise price of the stock option at the date of the grant.  
 
Equity Incentive Plan 
On December 7, 1999, the Company adopted the 1999 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Plan"), which was subsequently amended and restated on July 6, 2001,  
May 13, 2003, May 13, 2004, and May 12, 2005. The Plan authorizes the Company to grant options to purchase up to 9,767,051 shares of common stock. Under 
the Plan, options to purchase common stock generally are exercisable in increments of 25% annually in each of the first through fourth anniversaries of the 
date of grant. Options to purchase Series A Preferred Stock that were outstanding at the time the Company completed its IPO in July 2001 became options to 
purchase the Company's common stock. Those options were immediately exercisable upon their issuance. All the options issued under the plan expire after 
ten years.  

The weighted-average fair value of the Company's options granted in 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $11.59 per share, $17.39 per share and $12.96 per share, 
respectively. The fair value of these options is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes methodology required by SFAS No. 123 for publicly 
traded companies. In applying the Black-Scholes methodology to the option grants, the Company used the following assumptions: 
 

  Year Ended December 31, 

  2005  2004  2003 

Risk-free interest rate  4.0% - 4.5%  4.0% - 4.8%  3.6% - 4.3% 

Expected option life  7 years  7 years  7 years 

Expected price volatility  39.8%  50.1%  54.3% 
 
 
The assumed forfeiture rate was not material to the calculation. The Company does not assume a dividend yield as it has never declared or paid cash 
dividends on its common stock. 
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A summary of the Company's stock option activity is as follows (shares in thousands):  
 

 Common Stock 
 
 

 
Shares  

Weighted Avg. 
Exercise Price 

Outstanding at December 31, 2002 3,288  $ 7.58 
  Granted 1,333   21.80 
  Exercised (309)   4.67 
  Forfeited or expired (78)   7.25 
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 4,234  $ 12.28 
  Granted 2,458   30.61 
  Exercised (505)   7.53 
  Forfeited or expired (359)   24.34 
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 5,828  $ 19.68 
  Granted 1,819   23.82 
  Exercised (314)   8.61 
  Forfeited or expired (1,145)   30.01 

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 6,188  $ 19.55 

 
As of December 31, 2005, there were 1,840,764 options available for future issuance. 
 
In 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company granted certain independent distributors common stock options for a total of 42,100, 19,900 and 16,750 shares, 
respectively, under the Plan. The distributors were given options to purchase common stock, exercisable in 25% increments on the first through fourth 
anniversaries of the date of grant, at a weighted-average exercise price of $25.09, $32.56 and $16.31 per share in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The 
options expire after ten years. 

In connection with the distributor stock grants discussed above and the issuance of certain stock options to employees and distributors, the Company incurred 
non-cash stock-based compensation representing the fair value of the stock and stock options granted to distributors, and for employee stock options to the 
extent the fair value of the Company's stock exceeded the exercise price of the stock option at the date of the grant. The Company recognizes this non-cash 
stock-based compensation over the respective vesting period, as appropriate. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, non-cash stock-based 
expense of approximately $467,000, $1.5 million, and $2.1 million, respectively, was recorded in the accompanying statement of operations related to these 
stock options and stock grants.  
 
A summary of the Company's stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2005, is as follows (shares in thousands):  

  
  Options Outstanding  Options Exercisable 

Range of Exercise Prices  
Number 

Outstanding  

Weighted-Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life  

Weighted-
Average 
Exercise 

Price  
Number 

Exercisable  

Weighted-
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

$0.00 – $8.50  1,600  4.5  $ 4.97  1,600  $ 4.97 
$8.51 – $16.00  79  6.7   15.16  53   15.16 
$16.01 – $24.00  1,832  7.6   20.18  655   19.05 
$24.01 – $32.00  2,541  8.5   27.63  574   28.20 

$32.01 – $35.87  136  8.4   33.96  36   34.09 

  6,188  7.2  $ 19.55  2,918  $ 13.24 

 
 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
On May 30, 2002, the Company and its shareholders approved and adopted the 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP"). The ESPP authorizes the 
Company to issue up to 200,000 shares of common stock to its employees who work at least 20 hours per week. Under the ESPP, there are two six-month plan 
periods during each calendar year, one beginning January 1 and ending on June 30, and the other beginning July 1 and ending on December 31. Under the 
terms of the ESPP, employees can choose each plan period to have up to 5% of their annual base earnings, limited to $5,000, withheld to purchase the 
Company's common stock. The purchase price of the stock is 85 percent of the lower of its beginning-of-period or end-of-period market price. Under the 
ESPP, the Company sold to employees 11,530, 8,792, and 12,777 shares in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The weighted-average fair value of those 
purchase rights granted in 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $6.93 per share, $9.04 per share, and $5.27 per share, respectively. As of December 31, 2005, there  
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were 161,219 shares available for future issuance. In applying the Black-Scholes methodology to the purchase rights granted, the Company used the following 
assumptions: 
 

  Year Ended December 31, 

  2005  2004  2003 

Risk-free interest rate  3.0% - 3.6%  1.9% - 2.8%  1.1% - 1.8% 

Expected option life  6 months  6 months  6 months 

Expected price volatility  39.8%  50.1%  54.3% 

The assumed forfeiture rate was not material to the calculation. The Company does not assume a dividend yield as it has never declared or paid cash 
dividends on its common stock. 
 
14.  Employee Benefit Plans: 
The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, which covers U.S. employees who are 21 years of age 
and over. Under this plan, the Company matches voluntary employee contributions at a rate of 100% for the first 2% of an employee's annual compensation 
and at a rate of 50% for the next 2% of an employee's annual compensation. Employees vest in the Company's contributions after three years of service with 
the Company. The Company's expense related to the plan was approximately $940,000, $830,000, and $720,000 in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.  
 
15.  Commitments and Contingencies: 
Operating Leases. The Company leases certain equipment and office space under non-cancelable operating leases. Rental expense under operating leases 
approximated $7.7 million, $6.2 million and $5.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Future minimum payments, 
by year and in the aggregate, under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining lease terms of one year or more, are as follows at 
December 31, 2005 (in thousands):  
 

2006 $ 6,167 
2007  4,515 
2008  1,977 
2009  553 
2010  433 
Thereafter   762 

 $ 14,407 

Royalty and Consulting Agreements. The Company has entered into various royalty and other consulting agreements with third party consultants. The 
Company incurred royalty and consulting expenses of $3.2 million, $5.2 million and $4.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, 
respectively, under minimum contractual obligations that were contingent upon services. The amounts in the table below represent minimum payments to 
consultants that are contingent upon future services. These fees are accrued when it is deemed probable that the performance thresholds are met. 
Payments under these agreements for which the Company has not recorded a liability, are as follows at December 31, 2005 (in thousands):  
 

2006 $ 3,369 
2007 431 
2008 430 
2009 430 
2010 330 
Thereafter 1,327 
 $ 6,317 

Portions of the Company’s payments for operating leases and royalty agreements are denominated in foreign currencies and were translated in the 
tables above based on their respective U.S. dollar exchange rates at December 31, 2005. These future payments are subject to foreign currency 
exchange rate risk. 
 
Purchase Obligations. The Company has entered into certain supply agreements for its products, which include minimum purchase obligations. During the 
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company paid approximately $6.4 million, $6.4 million, and $6.8 million, respectively, under those 
supply agreements. The Company’s remaining purchase obligations under those supply agreements are approximately $5.2 million in 2006. 

Portions of these payments are denominated in foreign currencies and were translated based on their respective U.S. dollar exchange rates at 
December 31, 2005. These future payments are subject to foreign currency exchange rate risk. 
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Legal Proceedings. In 2002, pursuant to a purchase and royalty agreement with CERAbio LLC (“CERAbio”), the Company purchased assets consisting 
primarily of completed technology for $3.0 million and recorded this entire amount as an intangible asset. Of this purchase price, $1.5 million was paid 
upon signing the purchase agreement. The remaining $1.5 million is recorded in “Accrued expenses and other current liabilities” in the consolidated 
balance sheet and is payable if certain conditions under the agreement are satisfied. The agreement also provides for specified future royalties 
contingent upon sales of products related to the acquired technology. Believing that the contractual obligations for payment had not been met, the 
Company disputed whether the second payment and royalties had been earned. In 2003, CERAbio and Phillips Plastics Corporation filed a lawsuit against 
the Company in United States District Court for the Western District of Wisconsin for payment of the remaining $1.5 million purchase price and the 
royalties earned to date. In 2003, the trial court ruled in favor of CERAbio and ordered the Company to pay the remaining purchase price and the 
royalties earned to date. The royalties earned to date have been recorded within “Accrued expenses and other current liabilities” in the consolidated 
balance sheet. In 2004, the Company appealed the trial court’s judgment to the United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit. In June 2005, the 
appeals court upheld the trial court's ruling granting CERAbio summary judgment on certain of the Company’s counterclaims, but overruled the trial 
court's ruling limiting the Company’s evidence that it could present at trial. The effect of this ruling was to grant the Company a new trial in this dispute, 
the date for which has been set as May 8, 2006. The Company does not believe that the outcome of this lawsuit will have a material adverse effect on its 
financial position or results of operations.  

In 2002, the Company entered into a license agreement to resolve an intellectual property dispute that, among other things, provided for a payment of up to 
$1.25 million if a particular patent re-issued by February 10, 2004, and certain other conditions, as defined in the license agreement, were satisfied. While 
the patent in question re-issued prior to February 10, 2004, based on its assessment, the Company has concluded that the other required conditions were not 
satisfied upon re-issuance and the consequential payment of any amount is not probable. On October 12, 2005, the licensor invoked the dispute resolution 
procedure set forth in the license agreement which provides for a series of informal dispute resolution activities before a more formalized mechanism is 
invoked which could ultimately lead to a formal arbitration proceeding and potentially an appeal to enforce the judgment of an arbitration panel. The 
Company continues to believe that the required conditions were not satisfied upon reissuance, and therefore, no additional payment is due as a result of the 
reissuance. Accordingly, no provision has been made for this contingency as of December 31, 2005.  

In 2000, Howmedica Osteonics Corp. (“Howmedica”) sued the Company alleging patent infringement. The lawsuit seeks an order of infringement, injunctive 
relief, unspecified damages and various other costs and relief and could impact a substantial portion of the Company’s knee product line. The Company 
believes, however, that it has strong defenses against Howmedica’s claims and thus is vigorously defending this lawsuit. In November 2005, the court issued a 
Markman ruling on claim construction holding that the Company’s products do not literally infringe the claims of Howmedica’s patent. No trial date has been 
set in this matter. Management is unable to estimate the potential liability, if any, with respect to the claims and accordingly, no provision has been made 
for this contingency as of December 31, 2005. Management believes that the claims are covered in part by our patent infringement insurance. Management 
does not believe that the outcome of this lawsuit will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.  

In 2004, the Company announced a voluntary market withdrawal of a limited number of metal acetabular hip cups that are intended for use in the 
Company’s CONSERVE® hip systems. In connection with this market withdrawal, the Company recorded product liability reserves for probable losses related 
to the market withdrawal. Management believes that the amount recorded is appropriate based on assumptions with respect to estimated patient claims 
related to the market withdrawal. The nature of a market withdrawal and the associated claims are such that the claims will occur over an extended period 
of time. The Company’s loss estimate includes an assumption for unasserted claims based on management’s industry experience with similar circumstances. 
While the Company believes that the amount recorded related to the market withdrawal is appropriate, it is possible that changes in assumptions related to 
potential claims or insurance coverage could have an adverse effect on the Company’s estimate. 

In 1993, prior to the December 1999 recapitalization and inception of the Company in its present form, the Predecessor Company acquired substantially all of 
the assets of the large joint orthopaedic implant business from Dow Corning Corporation (DCC). DCC retains liability for matters arising from certain conduct 
of DCC prior to June 30, 1993. As such, DCC has agreed to indemnify the Predecessor Company against all liability for all products manufactured prior to the 
acquisition except for products provided under the Predecessor Company's 1993 agreement with DCC pursuant to which the Predecessor Company purchased 
certain small joint orthopaedic implants for worldwide distribution. The Predecessor Company was notified in 1995 that DCC, which filed for reorganization 
under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, would no longer defend the Predecessor Company in such matters until it received further direction from the 
bankruptcy court. Based on the most recent plan of reorganization submitted to the court, it appears that the Predecessor Company would be considered an 
unsecured creditor and, under the terms of the plan, would receive 24% of any such claim as a cash payment with the remainder to be paid by a senior note 
due within ten years. There are several appeals regarding the confirmed plan of reorganization pending before the U.S. District Court in Detroit, Michigan, 
which have delayed implementation of the plan. There can be no assurance that DCC will indemnify the Predecessor Company or the Company on any claims 
in the future. Although neither the Predecessor Company nor the Company maintains insurance for claims arising on products sold by DCC, the Company does 
not believe the outcome of any of these matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.  

In February 2006, a trial court in France delivered a ruling that requires the Company to pay approximately $1.5 million to one of its French independent 
sales agents in satisfaction of a dispute, and that also returns control of the underlying sales territory back to the Company. Both parties have the right to 
appeal this judgment, and the ultimate resolution of this dispute could be an amount higher or lower than this amount. The Company has recorded 
approximately $1.5 million within "Accrued expenses and other current liabilities" in the consolidated balance sheet. Management believes that the amount 
recorded is appropriate based on the facts and circumstances of the underlying dispute. The Company does not believe that the ultimate resolution of this 
dispute will have a material adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations.  
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The Company is currently involved in separate disputes in Italy with a former agent and two former employees. Management believes that it has meritorious 
defenses to any claims related to these disputes. The payment of any amount related to these disputes is not probable and cannot be estimated at this time. 
Accordingly, no provisions have been made for these matters as of December 31, 2005. 

In addition to those noted above, the Company is subject to various other legal proceedings, product liability claims and other matters which arise in the 
ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the amount of liability, if any, with respect to these matters, will not materially affect the 
results of operations or financial position of the Company.  
 
16.  Segment Data: 
The Company has one reportable segment, orthopaedic products, which includes the design, manufacture and marketing of reconstructive joint devices and 
biologics products. The Company's geographic regions consist of the United States, Europe (which includes the Middle East and Africa) and Other (which 
principally represents Asia and Canada). Long-lived assets are those assets located in each region. Revenues attributed to each region are based on the 
location in which the products were sold.  
 
Net sales of orthopaedic products by category and information by geographic region are as follows (in thousands):  
 

  Year Ended December 31, 
  2005  2004  2003 
       
Net sales by product line:       
 Hips products  $ 109,267  $ 99,133  $ 78,071 
 Knee products  94,073  87,408  78,338 
 Biologics products  62,358  62,070  50,056 
 Extremity products  40,594  36,433  31,876 
 Other  12,845  12,495  10,591 

 Total     $ 319,137  $ 297,539  $ 248,932 

 

Net sales by geographic region:       
 United States  $ 197,548  $ 180,380  $ 152,864 
 Europe  80,374  84,726  70,078 
 Other  41,215  32,433  25,990 
 Total  $ 319,137  $ 297,539  $ 248,932 

       

Operating income (loss) by geographic region:       
 United States  $ 32,464  $ 31,209  $ 18,772 
 Europe  (5,633)  3,535  7,110 
 Other  6,650  3,669  1,284 
 Total  $ 33,481  $ 38,413  $ 27,166 

 
 December 31, 
 2005  2004 
Long-lived assets:    
 United States $ 58,237  $ 45,905 
 Europe 18,012  20,356 
 Other 4,957  3,946 

 Total $ 81,206  $ 70,207 

 
No single foreign country accounted for more than 10% of the Company's total net sales during 2005, 2004 or 2003; however, Italy and France together 
represented approximately 12% of the Company's total net sales in 2005, and 16% of the Company’s total net sales in both 2004 and 2003.  

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company’s European geographic region incurred charges of approximately $1.5 related to the write down of 
certain inventory due to the termination of an agreement to distribute certain third party spinal products in Europe, charges of approximately $1.5 million 
associated with a European distributor transition and the associated legal dispute, and charges of approximately $800,000 for severance costs associated with 
management changes. 
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17.  Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited): 
The following table presents a summary of the Company’s unaudited quarterly operating results for each of the four quarters in 2005 and 2004, respectively 
(in thousands). This information was derived from unaudited interim financial statements that, in the opinion of management, have been prepared on a basis 
consistent with the financial statements contained elsewhere in this filing and include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, 
necessary for a fair statement of such information when read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and related notes. The operating results 
for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.  

 
 2005 

 First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter 

Net sales $ 82,601  $  82,789  $  73,479  $  80,268 
Cost of sales 22,777  24,358  20,263  24,342 

Gross profit 59,824  58,431  53,216  55,926 
Operating expenses:        

Selling, general and administrative 41,668  39,183  40,045  46,020 
Research and development 4,897  5,699  5,904  5,783 
Amortization of intangible assets 1,059  1,040  1,020  1,131 
Stock-based expense 212  119  65  71 

Total operating expenses 47,836  46,041  47,034  53,005 

Operating income $  11,988  $  12,390  $  6,182  $  2,921 

Net income $ 7,269  $ 7,767  $ 3,986  $ 2,043  

Net income per share, basic $ 0.21  $ 0.23  $ 0.12  $ 0.06 

Net income per share, diluted $ 0.21  $ 0.22  $ 0.11  $ 0.06 

 
 2004 

 First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter 

Net sales $ 74,917  $  75,616  $  69,299  $  77,707 
Cost of sales 20,386  21,383  19,998  22,416 

Gross profit 54,531  54,233  49,301  55,291 
Operating expenses:        

Selling, general and administrative 37,134  37,714  36,611  39,685 
Research and development 4,982  4,524  4,302  4,613 
Amortization of intangible assets 942  928  975  1,044 
Stock-based expense 424  465  271  329 

Total operating expenses 43,482  43,631  42,159  45,671 

Operating income $  11,049  $  10,602  $  7,142  $  9,620 

Net income $ 6,614  $ 6,688  $ 4,430  $ 6,290 

Net income per share, basic $ 0.20  $ 0.20  $ 0.13  $ 0.19 

Net income per share, diluted $ 0.19  $ 0.19  $ 0.13  $ 0.18 

 
The Company’s net income for the fourth quarter of 2005 included the after-tax effects of approximately $1.7 million of costs incurred related to 
management changes in the Company’s U.S. and European operations, approximately $1.6 million of charges related to the termination of an agreement  
to distribute certain third party spinal products in Europe, approximately $1.5 million of charges related to a European distributor transition and the 
associated legal dispute, and approximately $700,000 of charges to write-down a long-lived asset to its fair value.  

The Company’s net income for the third quarter of 2004 included the after-tax effect of approximately $800,000 of costs associated with the voluntary 
market withdrawal of certain CONSERVE® hip components. The Company’s net income for the fourth quarter of 2004 included the after-tax effect of 
approximately $2.9 million of charges associated with the Company’s foot and ankle product line transition. 
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Under the supervision and with the 
participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness 
of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this evaluation, our management concluded that our 
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005. Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their 
report which is included herein.  
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corporate information   

 
Investor Relations 
Stockholders, securities analysts, and investors seeking more 
information can access the following information via the Internet at 
www.wmt.com: 

•  News releases describing significant company events and sales 
 and earnings results for each quarter and the fiscal year. 

•  Annual, quarterly, and current reports to the Securities and 
 Exchange Commission describing the company’s business and 
 financial condition. 

In addition, investors are welcome to call, write or fax Wright to 
request the information above – including a copy of our annual 
report or Form 10-K - free of charge.  Inquiries should be directed 
to:   

 Wright Medical Group, Inc.                                                        
 Attn:  Investor Relations                                       
 5677 Airline Road, Arlington, TN  38002                                 
 901.867.4113       901.867.4390  Fax 
 
Transfer Agent and Registrar 
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, Inc. acts as transfer 
agent and registrar for Wright and maintains all stockholder records 
for the company.  Communications concerning stock holdings, lost 
certificates, transfer of shares, duplicate mailings or changes of 
address should be directed to: 

 Wright Medical Group, Inc. 
 c/o American Stock Transfer & Trust Company   
 59 Maiden Lane, New York, NY 10038          
 800.937.5449     info@amstock.com   
 
Cash Dividend Policy 
Wright has never declared or paid cash dividends on our common 
stock and does not anticipate a change in this policy in the 
foreseeable future.  The company currently intends to retain all 
future earnings for the operation and expansion of its business. 
 
Stock, Price and Trading Holder Data 
Wright’s common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market 
under the symbol “WMGI.”  Stock price quotations are available at 
the Company’s investor relations website at www.wmt.com and are 
printed daily in major newspapers including The Wall Street Journal. 

The ranges of high and low bid prices per share for the company’s 
common stock for 2005 and 2004 are set forth below.  

Price data reflect actual transactions.  In all cases, the prices shown 
are inter-dealer prices and do not reflect markups, markdowns or 
commissions. 

  
Annual Meeting 

The 2006 annual meeting of Wright stockholders will be held  
May 11, 2006  

beginning at 3:30pm CST at the  
Doubletree Hotel  

Executive Meeting Room 
5069 Sanderlin Avenue  

Memphis, TN  38117 
 

The Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy  
Statement are being mailed to shareholders 

with this annual report. 
 

Independent Auditors 
KPMG LLP 

Memphis, Tennessee 
 

Non-GAAP Financial Measures 
The Company uses non-GAAP financial measures, such as net 

 sales, excluding the impact of foreign currency, gross profit, as 
 adjusted, operating income, as adjusted, net income, as 

 adjusted and net income, as adjusted, per diluted share. The 
 Company’s management believes that the presentation of 
 these measures provides useful information to investors. 

 These measures may assist investors in evaluating the 
 Company’s operations, period over period. The measures 

 exclude such items as business development activities, 
 including purchased in-process research and development, 

 the financial impact of significant litigation, and  
stock-based expense recorded pursuant to FASB statement 

 No. 123R, all of which may be highly variable, difficult  
to predict and of a size that could have substantial impact 

 on the Company’s reported results of operations for a period. 
 Management uses these measures 

 internally for evaluation of the performance of the business, 
 including the allocation of resources and the evaluation of 

 results relative to employee performance compensation 
 targets. Investors should consider these non-GAAP measures 

 only as a supplement to, not as a substitute for or as superior 
 to, measures of financial performance prepared in accordance 

 with GAAP.  This annual report includes discussion of non- 
GAAP financial measures. Reference is made to the most 

 directly comparable GAAP financial measures.  The 
 reconciliation of the differences between the two financial 

 measures is found on the initial page of this annual report, and is 
 otherwise available in the “Corporate - Investor Information – 

 Supplemental Financial Information” section of the Company’s 

 website located at www.wmt.com. 

  

 
2005 High Low 2004 High Low 

First Quarter $27.62 $24.00  $35.53 $29.24 

Second Quarter $27.97 $22.98  $36.99 $29.56 

Third Quarter $28.40 $23.93  $36.08 $22.90 

Fourth Quarter $24.39 $18.30  $30.10 $20.75 

              

As of February 24, 2006, there were 191 stockholders of record and an  
estimated 7,201 beneficial owners of our common stock. 






